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603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 xvmv.dhhs.nh.gov

October 17, 2022

\(o

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to
exceed $585,000 for the provision of services to assist with the operation of cold weather solutions
for individuals and families experiencing homelessness, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30. 2023. 100%
Federal Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Merrimack County 177435 Merrimack County $140,000

Nashua Soup Kitchen and
Shelter, Inc.

174173
Hilisborough

County $245,000

Strafford County 177478 Strafford County $60,000

Way Station 339623 Carroll County $140,000

Total: $585,000

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2023, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide services to assist with the operation of cold
weather solutions for Individuals and families experiencing homelessness and assist with
mitigation of the negative outcomes of homelessness this upcoming winter. This is the first set of
contracts for this service; the Department will be bringing additional contracts for review and
approval to the Council. Funds were made available to each county In the state. Award amounts
were determined by dividing the first half of the funds evenly and then distributing the remaining
funds based on the January 2022 preliminary Point in Time count data for each county. The
Department is currently working with providers in the remaining counties to meet the anticipated
need and provide statewide access. The Contractors will engage with all municipalities and
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related service providers for their county. They will be flexible and reflective of the needs of the
county, including but not limited to:

•  Partial funding of a cold weather shelter.

• . Hotel stays.

• Other alternatives to provide shelter.

• " Coordination of referrals to related services.

•  Transportation to shelter solution.

With these four contracts, approximately 253 individuals will be served during State Fiscal
Year 2023.

The population to receive these services are NH citizens who are experiencing
homelessness, who are in need of appropriate shelter during the winter and cold weather months.
The Contractors will provide access to emergency shelter and related services specifically to
provide safety In cold weather to individuals and families who are unable to access year-round
emergency shelter services. The Contractors will:

•  Ensure that community plans that include a cold weather shelter must have shelter
' designed to meet the basic needs of individuals and families who have no other
housing options and who would otherwise be without a place to sleep during the
winter months.

•  Ensure each individual's basic needs are met, including, at a minimum, a safe,
protective, and sanitary environment on a short-term emergency or transitional
basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

•  Provide a low-barrier shelter with no pre-conditions for entry during cold weather.
Terminations from shelter will only be due to threats to the safety of the individual
or others.

The Department select^ the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from September
23, 2022 through October 3, 2022. The Department received four (4) responses that were
reviewed and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1,
Subsection 1.1. of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements.
for up.to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available,
funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be a gap in
emergency cold weather services throughout the upcoming winter months, leaving people
experiencing unsheltered homelessness without the fatality prevention provided by this critical
safety net service.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #21.023, FAIN # ERA0012 and
#ERA0435
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori a) Shibinette ^
Commissioner

)  . , •

T/ie Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cititens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-095-094-940010-24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA DHHS FISCAL
RECOVERY FUNDS

100% Federal Funds

Merrimack County Vendor#177435

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 00FRF602PH9529A $0.00 $140,000.00 $140,000.00

Sub Total, $0.00 $140,000.00 $140,000.00

Nashua Soup kitchen and Shelter. Inc. Vendor#174173

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount'

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 0OFRF602PH9529A $0.00 $245,000.00 $245,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $245,000.00 $245,000.00

Strafford County Vendor#177478

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 00FRF602PH9529A $0.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00

Way Station Vendor #339623

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title . Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 00FRF602PH9529A $0.00 $140,000.00 $140,000.00

Sub Total $0.00 $140,000.00 $140,000.00

Overall Total -  $0.00 $585,000.00 $585,000.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID # 1RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW

Project Title [Cold Weather Shelter Program

Maximum

Points

Available'

Merrimack'

County.

Nashua Soup
Kitchen&

Shelter Strafford County Way Station

Technical

Capacity (Q1) 20 19. 16 20 . 20

Approach (Q2) 40 37 36 38 39

Experience (Q3) .  20 19 .18 20 18

Knowledge (Q4) 20 17 17 20 20

TOTAL POINTS 100 92 87 98 97

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST Not Applicable - No Cost Proposal for RFA

Reviewer Name

1 :Melissa Hatfield

^ Mamie Kelly
f  '■ .

3' '
jTravis Newton

4j ■
5|
eF *

7|;

9

'Title

(Bureau Chief

iHousing Program,Manager
;COVID-19 Homeless Outreach
(Service Coordinator.

10i
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)
Subject; Cold Weather Shelter Program RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-01

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private; confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

1.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3. Contractor Name

Merrimack County

1.4 Contractor Address

333 Daniel Webster Hwy
Concord, NH 03303

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)228-0331

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-

24650000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$140,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
OoeuSlgiwd by:

Date:10/13/202

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Ross Cunningham

2coun.ty Administrator

1.13 St3te Agency signature
DoeuSlgncd by:

.  DatelO/14/202

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Karen Hebert

1

Division Di rector

1.15 Approvafby ihelT.H.' Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
y/-~DocuSlgn«d by:

By: ■ . On: 10/18/2022

1.17 Approval by tTietjovefnor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the. Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that' reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. -
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate-against employees or applicants for employment
becau^ of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed . and-
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from.the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written noticc,specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with fiinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Slate.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior \vritten notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of, this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omiss^oanaf the

of 4
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not

less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate{s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy, the certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and.are incorporated herein by
reference..

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities wtiich the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
' identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall-be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and,
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained, therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL- PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and,
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect.to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4.of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
'services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor must have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements must specify how corrective action must be managed. The
Contractor must manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor- must
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

/—OS

[gj£
RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-01 A-1.2 Contractor Initials

10/13/2022
Merrimack County Page 1 of 1 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide services to NH citizens who are experiencing
homelessness, and who are in need of appropriate shelter during the winter
and cold weather months.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available in Merrimack County.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days must mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. TerminoloQV

1.4.1. "Literally Homeless"- Individuals who meets the following criteria:

1.4.1.1. Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private
place not meant for human habitation;

1.4.1.2. Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated
to provide temporary living arrangements (including
congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and
motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal,
state and local government programs); or

1.4.1.3. Is exiting an iristitution where they resided for 90 days or less
and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant
for human habitation immediately before entering that
institution.

1.4.2. New Hampshire Emergency Rental Assistance Program

1.4.2.1. The NH Emergency Rental Assistance Program (NHERAP)
is a federally-funded rental assistance program through the
Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). It is administered by New Hampshire Housing,
in collaboration with GOFERR and the state's five

Community Action Partnership agencies.

1.4.2.2. NHERAP provides financial assistance for New Hampshire
renters who cannot pay their rent and utilities during the
pandemic. The program works with tenants and landlords,
and is expected to be available through at least 2022.

1.5. The Contractor must provide access to emergency shelter and related services
specifically to provide safety in cold weather, to individuals experiencing
homelessness and who are unable to access year-round emergency shelter
services. The Contractor must:

1.5.1. Ensure that community plans that include a cold weather sheltfer^ust
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have shelter designed to meet the basic needs of individuals and
families who have no other housing options and who would otherwise
be without a place to sleep during the winter months.

1.5.2. Ensure each individual's basic needs are met, including, at a minimum,
a safe, protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency
or transitional basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

1.5.3. Provide a low-barrier shelter, with no pre-conditions for entry during cold
weather. Terminations from shelter must only be due to threats to the
safety of the individual or others.

1.5.4. Ensure services are provided in a facility in accordance with Section 3.4,
Operation of Facilities, that includes at a minimum:

1.5.4.1. Building maintenance and repair;

1.5.4.2. Security systems;

1.5.4.3. Heating and possible cooling equipment;

1.5.4.4. Property and business insurance;

1.5.4.5. Utilities and furnishings; and

1.5.4.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

1.6. The Contractor must evaluate and assess appropriate housing needs
throughout the county. If a centralized building is not accessible for the entire
county or logical given the geographic location, the Contractor must provide
alternatives to a centralized shelter.

1.7. The Contractor must not utilize funding for hotel stays until after NHERAP
expires.

1.8. The Contractor must refer clients to the appropriate Regional Access Point for
supportive services.

1.9. The Contractor must engage with all municipalities, related providers, and any
other pertinent individuals in the county. The Contractor must:

1.9.1. Be flexible and reflective of the needs of the particular county, including,
but not limited to:

1.9.1.1. Partial funding of a cold weather shelter..

1.9.1.2. Hotel stays.

1.9.1.3. Other alternatives to provide shelter.

1.9.1.4. Coordination of referrals to related services.

1.9.1.5. Transportation to shelter solution. _d3
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1.9.2. Engage and include the municipality welfare director of the county
served to leverage funds in order to serve all people experiencing
homelessness who present for services.

1.9.3. Build off of existing resources for such services and not replace what a
community is responsible to provide under RSA 165.

1.9.4. Include a connection with the local Community Action Program to
access NHERAP dollars first, while they are available, for plans for hotel
stays.

1.10. The Contractor must enter client data into the Homeless Management
Information System, as described in the NH HMIS Policy and Procedure
Manual.

1.11.' The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.12. Reporting

1.12.1. The Contractor must submit monthly Reports, which include, but are
not limited to:

1.12.1.1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Annual
Performance Report (APR) showing number of'people
served each month, and cumulative ■ number of people
served.

1.12.2. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.12.2.1. Numberof people served each month.

1.12.2.2. Percentage of people who were referred to the Regional
Access Point.

1.12.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Seourity

iRLe
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Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3,2:1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited,English
proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was.financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.
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3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty
upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and- which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of applicatipDo^nd
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eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Background Checks

5.1. For all employees, interns, volunteers and subcontractors providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor will, after obtaining sighed and notarized
authorization from the person or persons for whom information is being sought:

5.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (BEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-
F:49;

5.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for Children,
Youth and Families.(DCYF) central registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35:

5.1:3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no
history of:

5.1.3.1. Felony conviction: or

5.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

5.1.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

5.1.3.2.2. Violence;

5.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

5.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

5.1.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

5.1.3.2.6. Theft;
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5.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or
alcohol: or

5.1.3.3. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior
that could endanger the well-being of any individual
served under the contract.

5.2. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the Department, it
will not use any employee, intern, volunteer or subcontractor to provide
services under the awarded contract if:

5.2.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

5.2.2. The individual's name is on the DCYF central registry;

5.2.3. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

5.2.4. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors as specified above.

6. Confidential Data

6.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as
set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Exhibit K,
DHHS Information Security Requirements.

6.2. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers involved in delivering
services through the resulting contract(s) sign an attestation agreeing to
access, view, store, and discuss Confidential. Data in accordance with federal
and state laws and regulations and the Department's Exhibit K, The Contractor
must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department
request.

6.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct a Privacy
Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system if Personally Identifiable Information
(Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at minimum, the
following:

6.3.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

6.3.2. Who will have access to Pll;

6.3.3. HoW'PII will be used in the system;

6.3.4., How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

6.3.5. Privacy practices.

6.4. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are^ither
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the co"
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processing or storage of PH.

7. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

7.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract, the Parties agree
to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
Services from the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously
perfcrrried by the Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known
as "Recipient"). Contract end of life services must be provided at no additional
cost. Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise
specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with the
Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition
Plan (DTP). The Department must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

7.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and their Affiliates to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of
any such Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

7.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store State Data In
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document, once transition of State Data
is complete.

7.4.' The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and its
Affiliates must be provided to the . Department and if applicable the Recipient
on a timely manner. Any such Transition Services must be deemed to be
Services for purposes of this Contract.

7.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the resulting Contract, the
Contractor and its affiliates agree Contract Information Security Requirements,
and if applicable, the Department's Business Associates Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.

7.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data and the
destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction.

/  OS
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8. Website and Social Media

8.1. The Contractor must agree that if performance of services on behalf of the
Department involve using social media or a website for marketing to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must work with
the Department's Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or
website designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
of the Department's and NH Department of Information Technology's website
and social media requirements and policies.

8.2. -The Contractor must agree protected health information (PHI), personal
information (PI), or other confidential information solicited either by social
media or the website maintained, stored or captured must not be further
disclosed unless expressly provided in the contract. The solicitation or
disclosure of PHI, .PI, or other confidential information must be subject to the
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associates
Agreement Exhibit and all applicable state rules and state and federal law.
Unless specifically required by the contract and unless clear notice is provided
to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site visitation
will not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media analytics or
marketing.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State Fiscal
Recovery Funds (SFRF), as awarded in May, 2021, by the US
Department of Treasury, Housing Stabilty Service Funds, Assistance
Listing Number 21.023, FAIN# ERA0012 and ERA0435.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1; The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment must be on a cost reimbursement basis.for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and must be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, not to exceed
the amount specified in Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation.

4. The Contractor .must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted In a form that is provided by or othenvise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature. Includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.bhhsfinance@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
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5. The Department must make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses must
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts, within the price limitation ' and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Officfe may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

•justified.

8. Audits

8.1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days, after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of .2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, .and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1; The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
must submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

V  DS
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8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor must be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and must return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations irhplementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's -
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fed^al agency

Lt
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or.

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Merrimack county

DocuSigntd by:

10/13/2022 CLS-

Title: 2County Administrator

f  DS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have.been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence.an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Merrimack County

—OocuSl0n«d by; "

10/13/2022

Diti ■>3affi«^^h\jnningham
2county Administrator
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction! If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction.""debarred," "suspended.""ineligible," "lower tier covered .
transaction." "participant," "persori," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal,(contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered

.  transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that.it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower. Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all 'solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not.required to^ check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and^Q.

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials^^
And Other Responsibility Matters 10/13/2022
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fpr debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with'commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective, lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13:1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debamhent, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntai7 Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lovyer tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Merrimack county

y—D«euSlgn*d by:

10/13/2022 (^2—
Diti"" T^M^Ifd^^tbnningham

2County Administrator
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS |

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: 1

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply; with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

I

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits '
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; '

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under'this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial r
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); |

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of "disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of i
services or benefits, in any program or activity; '
- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; '

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination; '

-28 C.F.R. pt. .31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42'
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies'
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making j
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts. j

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for i
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or I
debarment.

Exhibit G

Contractor Initials*
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; -

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

10/13/2022

Date Name:"^^^^^tunni ngham

Contractor Name: Merrimack County

^  Do^uSlgnid by:

2County Administrator

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil nionetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Merrimack county

—DocuSlflned by:

10/13/2022
\ . aeiiFBPPoaaeuei...—:—r

Date Name: Koss Cunmngham
Title. 2county Administrator

■ .—.OS

[l2L&
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aoareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501-

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received-by

QL^Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 10/13/2022
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.'

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall,not use, discjose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. ' For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. AS'required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of. the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busif^spLe

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 10/13/2022
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Associate shaii refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to'whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
■  Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available ail of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's buslness assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivif

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
•  individual for ah accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section

164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR,
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business .
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenvise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business QLt

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Associate.maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the

• violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othenwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and ,
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rfi^^ed
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials'
Health insurance Portability Act
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Merrimack County

Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert Ross Cunningham

Name of Authorized Representative
Division Director

Name of Authorized Representative

2County Administrator

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

10/14/2022 10/13/2022

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, if the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity ,
2. Amount of award

3. "Funding agency
4. NAiCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program, source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
G. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month,, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Merrimack county

—OocuSigned by:

10/13/2022

03(0 ^[J^^0^'S5S?'*^3?7nTngKanr
Title: 2County Administrator

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initiais
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 10/13/2022
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Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEI {SAM.gov) number for your entity is:
KKP8QVLRMNB7

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or.more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual -

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?.

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the internal Revenue Code of

1986?

_N0 YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information-including.without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

DS
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.,103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured.Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to, unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any mariner that would constitute a violation

.  of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

Le
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. . The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If Erid User is transmitting DHHS. data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

■ 3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops "and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

/• DS
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce{s),or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of inforrhation.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical Ideation requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

DS
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor of any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure vvipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization,- or otherwise' physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in, writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the

•  media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
-OS
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable. '

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect. potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements'that at a. minimum
■match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion vyith agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor yvill not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

/- DSf(fL&
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or acpess to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential, information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced, in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

di send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be .stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data,'Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at .all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.'

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by. a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or iridirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance-with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY for County of MERRIMACK

I, Tara Reardon, Chair of the-Merrimack County Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that:

1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes the County Administrator to execute any documents

which may be necessary to enter into contracts between the County of Merrimack and the State

of New Hampshire;

2. This authorization was in full force and effect on the date the contract was signed by the county

representative, Ross L Cunningham;

3. This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever, and

remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof and for thirty days thereafter; and

4. The following now occupies the office indicated above:

haNESW

V.

.  Ross L Cunningham

hereunto set my hand as the Commission Chair this

2.

day of

Merri

ra Reardon, Board Chair

County Commissioners

STATE OF NEW HAiVIPSHiRE

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

lay, month of ^ 2022, before me

^undersigned officer, personally appeared Tara Reardon who

acknowledged heryeif to be the Chair of the Merrimack County Board of Commissioners and being
authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 hereunto set my official se

A

•'ois

Commission Expiration Date:

•JOstfceSaf<lT8vRea^/Notary Public
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NH Public KA Monoatmtm n« CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Anrtotated, Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex' is authorized to prpvide pooled risk
mar^agement programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Prfmex* is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth t>eiow. in addition. Primex^ may extend the same coverage to nonwnembers.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions.'exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are epplcable to the members of Prlmex',.including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of ail claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed included In the Member's per occurrence limit, arid
therefore shall reduce the Member's Hmil of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Dedarations. The Imlt shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liatiility) and Coverage 8 (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public OffWals Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Uabllity) and F
(Educator's Legal Uability CIsims-Mado Coverage) ere excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member In good standing of the Now Hampshire i=»ubiic Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Prlmex*. As of the date this certificate is issued, the Information set out below eccuratety reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of Information only and corrfers no rights upon the certificate hokJer. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Partlclpsting Member

Merrimack County
333 Daniel Webster Highway
Suite 2
Boscawen, NH 03303

Member Number

604

Company Affording Coverage;

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place
46 Donovan Street
Concord. NH 03301-2624

^^BflWyw'Oeiey; '.UBkpiratldn'Data' '

General Liability (Occurrenco Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

□  □ OCCJ^CO

1/1/2022 1/1/2023 Each Occurrence $ 5.000,000
General Aggregate $ 5,000.000
Fire Damage (Any' one
Are)
Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp end Col):

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(EachAccidant)

Aggregate

X."'. Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 1/1/2022 1/1/2023
Statutory $2,000,000

Each /^dent $2,000,000

Disease - Each Cmployaa

Disease - Poicy umn

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (uNets otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Prlmex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee

State of NH DHHS
129 Pleasant St
Concord. NH 03301

Prtmex* - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; eta PotcaU

Date: 10/18/2022 mpurcetKBnhorlmex.org
Please direct inquires to:-

Prlmox* Claims/Coverage Services
603-225-2841 phono

603-228-3833 fax
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: Cold Weather Shelter Program RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-02

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Quincy Street
Nashua, NH 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 889-7770

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-

24650000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$245,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contrzctor Signature
■*—DocuSignsd by:

AKcUI Da.e:10/18/202
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michael Reinke
2

Executive Director

1.13 State Agency Signature
Oo«uSlgn*d by:

Hr Date:10/19/202

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

2

1.15 ApprovTnf^Wfe'lf^.'fiTDepartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

n  . On- 10/19/2022

1,17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifopphcable)

G&CItem number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1

("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMFLETIOiN OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor anydamages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any-property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct of indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omisstenoef the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property,
subject to subparagfaph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of.N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,

. payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of

- this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3.as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor must have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements must specify how corrective action must be managed. The
Contractor must manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor must
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

r—OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide services to NH citizens who are experiencing
homelessness, and who are in need of appropriate shelter during the winter
and cold weather months.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available in Hillsborough County.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days must mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. Terminology

1.4.1. "Literally Homeless"- Individuals who meets the following criteria:

1.4.1.1. Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private
place not meant for human habitation;

1.4.1.2. Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated
to provide temporary living arrangements (including
congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and
motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal,
state and'local government programs); or

1.4.1.3. Is exiting an institution where they resided for 90 days or less
and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant
for human habitation immediately before entering that
institution.

1.4.2. New Hampshire Emergency Rental Assistance Program

1.4.2.1. The NH Emergency Rental Assistance Program (NHERAP)
is a federally-funded rental assistance program through the
Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). It is administered by New Hampshire Housing,
in collaboration with GOFERR and the state's five

Community Action Partnership agencies.

1.4.2.2. NHERAP provides financial assistance for New Hampshire
renters who cannot pay their rent and utilities during the ,
pandemic. The program works with tenants and landlords,
and is expected to be available through at least 2022.

1.5. The Contractor must provide access to emergency shelter and related services
specifically to provide safety in cold weather, to individuals experiencing
homelessness and who are unable to access year-round emergency shelter
services. The Contractor must:

1.5.1. Ensure that community plans that include a cold weather shelterffiust
Aiie
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

have shelter designed to meet the basic needs of individuals and
families who have no other housing options and who would otherwise
be without a place to sleep during the winter months.

1.5.2. Ensure each individual's basic needs are met, including, at a minimum,
a safe, protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency
or transitional basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

1.5.3. Provide a low-barrier shelter, with no pre-conditions for entry during cold
weather. Terminations from shelter must only be due to threats to the
safety of the individual or others.

1.5.4. Ensure services are provided in a facility in accordance with Section 3.4.
Operation of Facilities, that includes at a minimum:

1.5.4.1. Building maintenance and repair;

1.5.4.2. Security systems;

1.5.4.3. Heating and possible cooling equipment;

1.5.4.4. Property and business insurance;

1.5.4.5. Utilities and furnishings; and

1.5.4.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

1.6. The Contractor must evaluate and assess appropriate housing needs
throughout the county. If a centralized building is not accessible for the entire
county or logical given the geographic location, the Contractor must provide
alternatives to a centralized shelter.

1.7. The Contractor must not utilize funding for hotel stays until after NHERAP
expires.

1.8. The Contractor must refer clients to the appropriate Regional Access Point for
supportive services.

1.9. The Contractor must engage with all municipalities, related providers, and any
other pertinent individuals in the county. The Contractor must:

1.9.1. Be flexible and reflective of the needs of the particular county, including,
but not limited to:

1.9.1.1. Partial funding of a cold weather shelter.

1.9.1.2. Hotel stays.

1.9.1.3. Other alternatives to provide shelter.

1.9.1.4. Coordination of referrals to related services.

1.9.1.5. Transportation to shelter solution.

t^f.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

1.9.2. Engage and include the municipality welfare director of the county
served to leverage funds in order to serve all people experiencing
homelessness who present for services.

1.9.3. Build off of existing resources for such services and not replace what a
community is responsible to provide under RSA 165.

1.9.4. Include a connection with the local Community Action Program to
access NHERAP dollars first, while they are available, for plans for hotel
stays.

1.10. The Contractor must enter client data into the Homeless Management
Information System, as described in'the NH HMIS Pollcv and Procedure
Manual.

1.11. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department..

1.12. Reporting

1.12.1. The Contractor must submit monthly Reports, which include, but are
not limited to:

1.12.1.1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Annual
Performance Report (APR) showing number of people
served each month, and cumulative number of people
served.

1.12.2. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.12.2.1. Number of people served each month.

1.12.2.2. Percentage of people who were referred to the Regional
Access Point.

1.12.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Seoarity

Aiie
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT 8

Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance; Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English
proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-02 B-2.0 Conlraclor Initials
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3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the.
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty
upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and-requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to;

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of applicatjocfejand

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Background Checks

5.1. For all employees, interns, volunteers and subcontractors providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor will, after obtaining signed and notarized
authorization from the person or persons for whom information is being sought:

5.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (SEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-
F:49:

5.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) central registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35:

5.1.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no
history of:

,5.1.3.1. Felony conviction; or

5.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

5.1.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

5.1.3.2.2. Violence;

5.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

5.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

5.1.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;
^  HQ

5.1.3.2.6. Theft;

RFA-2023-OEHS-09-COLDW-02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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5.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or
alcohol; or

5.1.3.3. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior
that could endanger the well-being of any individual
served under the contract.

5.2. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the Department, it
will not use any employee, intern, volunteer or subcontractor to provide
services under the awarded contract if:

5.2.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

5.2.2. The individual's name is on the DCYF central registry;

5.2.3. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

5.2.4. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors as specified above.

6. Confidential Data

6.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as
set by the Department and In accordance with the Department's Exhibit K,
DHHS Information Security Requirements.

6.2. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers involved in delivering
services through the resulting contract(s) sign an attestation agreeing to
access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal

and state laws and regulations and the Department's Exhibit K, The Contractor
must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department
request.

6.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct a Privacy
Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system if Personally Identifiable Information
(Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at minimum, the
following:

6.3.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

6.3.2. Who will have access to Pll; .

6.3.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

6.3.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

6.3.5. Privacy practices.

6.4. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the cQttet?fion,

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-02 B-2.0 Conlractor Initials
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processing or storage of Pll.

7. Contract End-of-Llfe Transition Services

7.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract, the Parties agree
to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
Services from the Contractor to the Department and. if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously
performed by the Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known
as "Recipient"). Contract end of life services must be provided at no additional
cost. Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise
specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with the
Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition
Plan (DTP). The Department must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

7.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and their Affiliates to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of
any such Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

7.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store State Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document, once transition of State Data
is complete.

7.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and its
Affiliates must be provided to the Department and if applicable the Recipient
on a timely manner. Any such Transition Services must be deemed to be
Services for purposes of this Contract.

7.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the resulting Contract, the
Contractor and its affiliates agree Contract Information Security Requirements,
and if applicable, the Department's Business Associates Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.

7.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data and the
destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction.

^ Aiie
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8. Website and Social Media

8.1. The Contractor must agree that if performance of services on behalf of the
Department involve using social media or a website for marketing to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must work with
the Department's Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or
website designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
of the Department's and NH Department of Information Technology's website
and social media requirements and policies.

8.2. The Contractor must agree protected health information (PHI), personal
information (PI), or other confidential information solicited either by social
media or the website maintained, stored or captured must not be further
disclosed unless expressly provided in the contract. The solicitation or
disclosure of PHI, PI, or other confidential information must be subject to the
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associates
Agreement Exhibit and all applicable state rules and state and federal law.
Unless specifically required by the contract and unless clear notice is provided
to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site visitation
will not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media analytics or
marketing.

Aiie
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State Fiscal
Recovery Funds (SFRF), as awarded in May, 2021, by the US
Department of Treasury, Housing Stabilty Service Funds, Assistance
Listing Number 21.023, FAIN# ERA0012 and ERA0435.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment must be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and must be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, not to exceed
the amount specified in Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation.

4. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or othenwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.bhhsfinance@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-02 C-2.0 Contractor Initials,
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5. The Department must make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each Invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses must
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close, of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
must submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. r-DS
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8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor must be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and must return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFA-2028-DEHS-09-COLDW-02 C-2.0 Contractor Initials,
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C.' 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

Air
Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials _

Workplace Requirements 10/18/2022
cuiOHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: C80AFD9B-AB5D-477C-8445-C48E70465262

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Nashua soup Kitchen & shelter inc.

DocuSlgn«d by:

10/18/2022

Date Reinke
Executive Director

/k|^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX.
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or empioyee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wili be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an empioyee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federai contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shali complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shali require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Nashua soup Kitchen & shelter inc.

— OocuSignad by:

AlicLwX10/18/2022

Reinke

Title:
Executive Director

-OS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation vvlll be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "Ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andf

fiiji
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. haye not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective pa^icipant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter inc.

DocuSlgned by:

10/18/2022 I AljctuMl
Diti Reinke

Executive Director

All?
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

-OS

Exhibit G IH
Contractor Initials^

Certirication of Complianca with raquiramenls partalnlng to Ferret Nondisalmination, Equal Trealmanl of Faith-Based Organizations
artd Whistleblower protections

10/18/2022
Rev. 10121/14 Page 1 of 2 Date '



DocuSign Envelope ID: C80AFD9B-AB5D-477C-8445-C48E70465262

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Nashua soup Kitchen & shelter inc.

OocuSignad by:

^U'ciuuX fuiAJct10/18/2022

Date ^ Namei'MTc^^ael Reinke
Title. Executive Director

kf.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts.to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Nashua soup Kitchen & Shelter inc

—DocuSlgntd by:

10/18/2022 AlicLwX flMJcL
Date Wme'i^T^'fiael Reinke

Title. Executive Director
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the. Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreaatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
. Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clihical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or recelv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

f5d-by
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifi^^

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
. and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiviji^HI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendmeht to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations urider45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business'days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Busiriess
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreemerit, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thpscps
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to.take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resofved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^'
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Nashua soup Kitchen & Shelter Inc.

Xbe<Slatei by: ^B9fisl^^.tl9^ Contractor
Miduui

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert Michael Reinke

Name of Authorized Representative
Division Director

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Di rector

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

10/19/2022 10/18/2022

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sutiject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tide descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
arid 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Nashua soup Kitchen & shelter inc

^DocuSlgnvd by:

10/18/2022

Dili ^
Title: Executive Director

Aiie
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

198884314
1. The LIE! (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

NO ^ YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:,._

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:.

CU/OHH8/110713
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have- the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

— OS
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or deiegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
deveioped or endorsed by a standards deveioping organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
— DS
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request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

— OS

(U-ie
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials

DHHS Information

Security Requirements 10/18/2022
Page 3 of 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; C80AFD9B-AB5D-477C-8445-C48E70465262

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be

transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

OSr—us
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

— 08
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendbr/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

ikf.
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0. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer arid Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

kf.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERirFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND

SHELTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 11. 1981.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this ofTlce is concerned.

Business ID: 61911

Certificate Number: 00057S7664

%

BSm

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

lliis 7th day of June A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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I. A//^ IA ̂ ns£ hereby oerti^ that;
iMame ur the elected Ofticer o1 tt-e C.rjrj>o:a',:on/LLG: cafnot oe cnntract sionarory)

1. 1 am a duty elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer o< >Va'SK<.fQ JSncp ^^hp) Uf) Xr^c.
(Conx)rat:ori/i.'«C ''•iar-'V)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting[ of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 13 ". 20 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

■ Da'ej

VOTED: That ^ .r tA>=.gl a?,—
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of
(Name ct Corpoiatiotv' ilCj

(may list more than one person)

to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, ̂ eements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thertto, which
may in hisAier judgment be desiratrte or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that saU vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contrrct amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid tor
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certltlcate of Authority. 1 further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence tfral the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

natftd:

lignaiUre of Elected

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DDAYYY)

10/19/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERfS), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

NAMEt'^^ Kimberiv Gutekunst
(aJc.'no. Exit: 603-882-2766 noI:
A^^ESS: kgutekunst@eatonberube.com

IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICff

INSURER A: The Hanover Insurance Companies 22292

INSURED NASSO

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc.
P.O. 00x3116
Nashua NH 03061

INSURER s: Amlnjst North America, Inc. 42376

INSURER c: Selective Insurance Group Inc. 14376

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E :

INSURERF;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 316316359 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

AdoLIi
'NSD

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
tMM/DDfYYYY>

POLICY EXP
imm/dd/yyyyi LIMITS

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE m OCCUR
ZHVA685423 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REMTED
PREMISES (Ea occutrence)

MED EXP (Any onq person)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POUCY I I 5ec^ I IlOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

$1,000,000

$100,000

$ 10,000

$1,000,000

$ 3,000,000

$ 3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED ~
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

ADVA685320 7/1/2022 7/1/2023
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddenti

$1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per iwrson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident]

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accklenti

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

claimsjmde

UHVAS85516 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

AGGREGATE $1,000,000

RETENTION $ m nnn

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y,
AmT>ROPRIETORff>ARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDEO?
(Mar)datory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

□

TWC4120182 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 y  PER
^  STATUTE

OTH.

N/A
E.L, EACH ACCIDENT $500,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $500,000
Property
Crime
Mariagement Liability

2HVA685423
ZHVA685423
MY 1006756

7/1/2022
7/1/2022
7/1/2022

7/1/2023
7/1/2023
7/1/2023

Bulldlrws
Contenis
Crime

$3,369,328
$982,870
$100,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)
Soup Kitchen and Shelter

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 30 days/IQ days non-payment

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

-ACORD 25(2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement

Nashua Soup kitchen
& Shelter, Inc.

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter (NSKS) provides food, emergency shelter, housing, and supportive

services to individuals and families throughout Greater Nashua. The organization works to improve and

increase access to a full spectrum of basic needs through engaging in advocacy work, conducting
sustainable programs, and thoughtfully collaborating with peer agencies. NSKS envisions and works

towards a future where all workers can earn a living wage, healthcare is accessible, housing is available

and affordable, and fewer individuals each year need services.
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GV illiam P. Connor, CPA, LLC
CERTlrlEO
f^OLlC
ACCOUNTANT

iNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To tfre Board of' 'Directors of

Nashua Soup :KitGhen and Shelter, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nashua Soup Kitchen and
Shelter, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement 'of
financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related

notes to the' financial statements.

feinaaement^a Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements .in accordance with accounting',principles generally accepted
in the United States of ̂ 'erica; this includes the desi^, impl'ementatipn, arid
mainteriance of internal control, relevant to the preparatiori-and fair presentation
of financial statements that are .free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud .or -error..

Auditor^ s Responsibiiitv

Our responsibility is to express an bpinipn,on these financial statements based

on our audi.t. We. conducted our audit in accordance with auditing s't.ari'dards
generally accepted iri the'United States of America. Thos.e standards require that,
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about .whether .the.
financial statements are free, from material misstatement.

An audit involves ;perfofmirig procedures to obtain audit evidence about tdie
ampunts ̂ aiid .disclosureis in the financial statements. The pro'cedufes selected

depend ..on the auditor's jud^ent, including the assessment of the risks of
material; missta.tement of the financial statements, whe.ther due to fraud or error.
In making those risk" assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant

to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

order to desi^ iaudit procedures that are appropriate in the ci-rcximstances, but.
-not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal •.coritfoi. Accordingly, we expres.s no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by mariagement, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial -statements..

We believe that the audit e'vidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to prpyide a ):jaei8 for pur audit opinion.

41 Brook Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. 03i04 Tel, [603) 623-9888 . Fax (603) 823-9872
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Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the finemcial statements .referred to above present fairly, in all
material resects, -the financial position of Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter-,
Inc. as of June. 30, 20^21, and the changes in its net assets and its cash :fiows
for. the ivear then ended in accordance, with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America".

Report on Sximmar'ized Comparative Information

We have previously audited", the Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc.'s 2020
financial statements, and .we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements in our report dated October 8, 2020. -In our-
opinion, the summarized comparative information presents herein as cf and for the"
year ehded June 30,' 2020 is consistent, in ail material res'pects, with the
audited financial statements' from which it has been derived.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was -conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion oh the financial
statements as a.'whole,. The schedule of .functional support and revenue oh page
16 is presented for purpose's of additional analysis and is hot-a required part
of the financial statements. Such information is the respqnsibili^ty' of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying' accounting
and other -records'Used to prepare the financial statements. The, information has
been ̂ subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other addit'iphal procedures in accordance with auditing -standards gehe'rally
accepted, in the United :States of America. In our opinion, the. info.rmatipn is
fairly stated .in all material respects in relation to the financial statements
'as a whole.

ihche's t'ef ,• New Hampshire-
Febru'ary',9 i 2022
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. INC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2021

(with comparative totals for 2020)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash (Note 1)

Grants and accounts receivable

(Note 1)

Prepaid, expense's

Total .current ass.ets

INVESTMENTS, (Note 2)

LAND, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

(Notes 1 and ;3)

Land and buildings
Building" improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Less - Accumulated depreciation

OTHER ASSETS.:

Notes receivable (Note 8)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:.

Accounts, payable

Accrued expenses
-Fiscal agent payaJole

Security deposits
Total cu'rreht •liabi^Tities

'NET.ASSETS (Note 1):

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions
Total net assets

SS.023.099 S  532.729

Without Donor With Donor Total Total

Restrictions Restrictions .2021 2020

$1,427,470 $  457 ,.729 $1,885,199 $  730,577

91,309 75,000 166,309 101,381
30 .245 _ 30.245 30.705

,1.549.024 532.729 2.081.753 862,663

906.342 906.342 722.208

2,557,472 2., 557., 472 :2 ,557 ,.472

537 ,00.8 - 537,,008 350,910

266.064 - 266.064 207 . 4"67

3,360,544 - 3,360,544. 3,115,849

903.798 - 903.798 822,319

2.456.746 _ 2:456.746 2.-293.536

110."987 110.987 .  105:702

55.023.099 :S 532.729 55.555.828 S3.984.103

$  26,222 $  26/222 $  103,740

182,341 - 182,341 112,880.

46,619 - 46,619 51 ,'901

1.500 - 1.500 1.300

256.682
_ 256', 682 270 .021

4,766,417 4,766,417 3,558,082-

532.729 532 .-729 156 .UOO

4.766.417 532.729 5.299.146 3.714-.082

S5. 555. 828 S3.'984..103

The accompanying notes to finahcial statements
are an integral .part of -these statements,
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'^SHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

:FbR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

(with comparative totals for 2020)

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

Total

■2021
Total

2020

SUPPORT AND .REVENUE:'
Support
Public contributions

Iri-kind contributions {Npte 4)
SMP Gr^t
State of New Hampshire
:Emergency Shelter Program Grant

Town grants, New Hampshire
Special events
Capital .CMpaigh fi restrictive grants
Other grants
Rent- Transitional Housing
Net assets released, ifrom

restrictions
Total support

Revenue

Ihye'stment incbine
Investmenti .return

Total revenue

OTHER INCOME ^ PPP ASSIST^^CE (NOTE )

Total support and revenue

$1,700,582
1,20^4,189

776,418

393,387
54,500

245,-945
172,028
110,136
34,150

81.000

4.-772.335

.21,848
1'68 .221

190.069

$4.962.404

457,729

(81.000)

376.729

.$1,700,5.82 $ 1,1.71,294
1,204,189 l,65'6,i97

-776,418

393,387 168,324.
54,500 53,297

2.45,945 325,635
"629,757 198,225
110,136 138,957
34,150 17,395

5.149.064 3.729.954

21,848
-  168.221.

190.069"

22,823
11.971

34.794

171.596

S  3.7 6.72 9 $5.339.133. $3.936.444.

The accompanying notes to financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER; INC

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE ,30. 2021

(with comparative totals for 2020)

EXPENSES:

Program Services

Ki tcheh,

Housing,' shelter .& services

Total program .services

Support Services
Mahageimeht and general

• Fundrai sing

^Total support services

Total-program and support

es^enses

■INCREASE ;IN NET ASSETS

OT T, ASSETS, '.beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year.

Without Donor
Restrictions

$1,865,061
1.611 ■ 877

3.476.938

-137,135
139.996

With Donor

Restriction's.
Total

2021

Total

2020

•277.131

3.754.069

1,208,335

3.558.082

'S4.766. 417

376,729

156.000

S  .532.729

$1,865,061 $2,179,'248
1.611.877 988.447

3.476.938 3.167.695

137,135.
139.996

277.131

76,666
223.719

300.385

3.754.069 3.466.080

1,585,064. 468 ,-364

3.7.1'4.082 3.245.718'

S5. 299.14 6 S'3.714.082

The accgmpaLhying notes to financial statements
are ^an integral part of these ste'tements.



STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR !tHE TEAR EOTJED JUNE 30. 2021

(with cbsparati^^ -totals for 2020)

Proaraa Services

Management Total Total

riient Rervicfis and Gener^ Fiindraisina 2021 2020

SflJJiSlES -MID RELATED EXPENDS":

Salaries 377 >309 S 517,862i $ 87,289 $ '65,166- S 1,047,626 5  906,306

.Payroll ;taxea- 30V4l6 4i;74p 7,034 5,252 84,442 66,345

' Employee, .bene£i ts 65,174 89.438. 15.072 11.255 180.939 161.258

472.899 649.040. 109.395 81.673 1.313.007 1.133.909

OrmR EXPENSES:

in-lcind food and services 1,119,-272 •77,999 3,459 3,459 1,204,189 1,656,197

Depreciation 53.925 •15,987. 6,516 5,052 81,-480 76,867

Utilities '26,231 21,653 4,648 3,472 56,004 51,193

Food and. s-upplies 97-,447 .11,313 -
- 108,760 128,441

Client-assistance, training £ education 95 53,242 - -
53,337 36,391

Postage 1,378 1,378 268 200 3,224 1,825

Insurance ■11,724 16,047 2,696 2,014 32,481 29,902

. Of~fice expense 2,865 -3,215 '590 441 7, ill 6,235

Telephone 2,398 2,836 -508 380 6,122 6,142

Newsletter 8,872 8,961 1,727 1,249 20,809 31,986

impairs and' maihtehance' 13,;644 2,952 -
- 16,596 17,769

Professional-fees 8,464 10,109 1,799 1,300 21,672 18,481

Miscellaneous 111. 193 ■- - 304 493

Travel 375 768 50 - i.,193 2,906

Extermination 995 1;447 - - 2,442 1.775

Ach^rtising and website' 164. 1,964 - 2,128 300

Trainajiig 1,274- 1,274 - - 2,548 886

.Technology expense 8,723 .10,241 967
- 19,931 (5,15:0)

Maintenance services 33,938 .12,546 4,512 ■3,-371 54,367 44,490

■Fundraising - • - -- 37;385 37,385 55,549

.Spring' Street preconstruction', expense - 613,651 - - 613.651 147,943

267. 95.061 - - 95.328 23.550
•

1,392.162 962.837- 27,740 58.323 ■2.44L;062 2.334.171

TOTAL njNCTTONAL EXPENDS SI .865.061. Sl. 611.877 S137;135 S139.996 53.754.069 S3; 468.080
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The acMOi^ahyin^ notes to -financial statesients
are "an .integral part of -these statements.
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. IWC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021

(with comparative totals for 2020)

Total Total

2021 2020 .

.CASH FLOWS FR.OM OPERATING ACTiVITIES:
Change in net .assets $1,585,064. '$ 468,364

Adjus.tment to reconcile change in net assets to
•net cash provided by operating activities -
Depreciation 81;480 76,867

Unrealized ^(appre.ciatipn) depreciation of investments (173, 66.8) (8,.013)

(Increas.e) decrease in the following assets:
Grants and accounts receivable (64,928) (60,384)

. .Prepaid expenses 460 2,768

Incr'eaise (decrease) in the following li^ilities:
Acc.ounts pay^le (77,5i8) 63,105

Ac.c^ed .expenses 6 ,9,4 6 ,1 (15,:347)

Fiscal sponsor payable (5,282) 51,902

Security deposits - 1 .:500

Net cash provided by operating activities 1.415.669 580.762

CASH ^pWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures (244,696) (24,297)

Net pf.oceeds ifrbm :6ale of investments 11,382 55,000

E^jrchase of investments (21,846) (20,250)

Increase in note receivable (5.2851 (5.0341

Net cash provided" by .(used .in) investing activities (260.4471 5:419

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 1,.154,622 586,181

CASH, beginning of year . 730.577 144 .396

CASH, end of year Sli885.-199 730.577

.ciTTPPT.FMRNTAT. DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFOI^TiON

CASH PAID DURING THE ,YE^ TOR:
$Interest $

•The accompanying notes to 'financial "statements
are ah integral part, of these statements..
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

1. Nature of . operatione :

The Organization provides meals, ;emergency shelter, transitional housing,
£ood baskets and advocacy to poor and homeless men, women and families in

the Greater Nashua, New Hampshire area. Additionally, the' Organization

owns a subsidiary that. was setup to acquire rental properties in the
Greater Nashua' area to provide 'housing .to low and moderate' income

individuals, and f^ilies,

The Organization is dependent, to a significant extent, upon contributions from

the general public for annual support of its operations and services.
Cohtributibris are obtained through year-round special events/ direct mail

'prq^ams, as well as, 'ongoing initiatives encompassing fouh^tions corporations,

and, related de'velopment programs.

•2'. Summary of significant accounting policies:

Basis 'of. accounting and presentation - The financial statements of the

Organization .have been prepared on the accrual basis ih accordance with
accounting' principles generally accepted in the Unitjsd Sa.tes of America.' The

accrual me'thod.of accounting recoc^izes' revenue when it is earned and.exi^hses
when, incurred. Certain comparative amounts in the statements of .actiyi ties'^d
functional expenses haye;been reclassified to conform with the current:y©ars
presentation.

Net'assets'aihd fe'venues, gains .and losses are classified based on the existence
or .absence of. donor-imposed reistrictibns. Accordingly, the net'assets "of the
Organization and changes therein are classified.as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets without donor restrictions are

assets that have been acquired from donors: (or certain grantors) without
restfictions that may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of th'e Organization. The governing Board has designated, from net
assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net, assets with donor restrictions - Net .assets subject .to donor or (or certain

grantor) .imposed restrictions are assets subject to stipulations imposed b'y 'the
donor. Some.donor imposed.restrictions, are tempo.rary .in:nature >" 'such-as .those
that will be met by €he'passage of time or other events specified by the.donor.
Other donor 'imposed xestrictibns are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that, resources ,b.e maintained in "perpetuity.- ^Dbnbr imposed
restrictions are released-when a restriction expires,, that is, .when -the

stipulated time has elapsed, vfhen the stipulated purpose for which the fesburcd
was restricted has been fulfilled, or both,
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

2. Summary of sionxficaht accounting'policies fcoht' ;

Support and rievenue i^cbonition - Unconditional contributions.are recognized when

pliedged and-recorded as net assets without,donor restrictions or net assets with
donor restrictions, d^ending on the.existenco and/or nature.of.any donor-imposed

restrictions. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions
on-which they depehd are substantially met . Gifts of cash and other assets are

reported with, doriqr restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets or designate them for
future, periods.

Grants and contributions received are .considered tO ̂  available for use'unless
specifically restricted by the grantor or donor; ,Wheh a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or'purpose restriction

is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net

assets released from restrictions.. Donor restricted .cohtribii.tions -whose

restrictions are metin the same reporting period .are reported as net^assets

without donor restricted support.

Functional expenses Direct expehseis are charged to their specific

progr«m as incurred. Any e'xpenditures hot 'directly chargeable are

allocated to -a program .based on the .proportion of time spent on each

program by, the staff.

Income tax status - ̂ e Organization is exempt from income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code, Section .501(c)(3). The brganization can be taxed,
oh activities considered by the Internal Revenue Service to be. outside of

the Organiza'tion'a -exempt purpose.

The Organization's Forms 990, 'Return of Organization Exempt from^ IhcOme

Tax, for the years ending June .30, .2021., "2020 and -2019 are subject to
examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

Land, building and equipment - Land, building and equipment- purchased are
recorded at cost-. The -Organization follows the policy of- charging to
expenses annual am.punts of depreciation which allocates the. .'cost of

buildings; and equipment over their estimated useful lives-. The
Organization employs .the straight-line method for detefmihing the ahhual

charge for diepreciation. The ranges of the estimated useful lives -used,
are las follows:

■Years

Buildings 27 ;-5 •- 40
Building improyemehts 27.5
kitchen equipment 10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 10

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and
betterments are. capitalized.- Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are
removed from ' the accounts,- along with the re.lated -accumulated
depreciation, .and any gain or loss is recogniz.ed,.
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. TWr

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

2. Sui^arv of siahific^t accounting policies (cont'd);

Use of lestimatae - .The preparation of financial statonents in conformity
wi th. Generally Accepted,Accounting Principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts' and
disclosures. Accordingly-, actual results could differ from ^ose
estimates.

.Cash and cash eouivalehts - All highly liquid investments with' a maturity
of one year or less are considered -to be cash equivalents. At June. 30,
2021, the carrying amount of the Organization's cash was $i-,885,i99 .and
the institution balance was $1,879,143. Of this amount> $767,138 was
covered by federal depositor's insurance and $1,112,275 was uninsured.

.Grants and accounts receivable - Grants and-accounts receivable consists"

•principally of the grants receivable from governmental agencies and rent
receivable from tenants . Grants and accounts receivable are :Statsd at the
amount management ejq^ects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a .charge to
earnings! a"nd a credit to a .valuation 'allowance based on its assessment of

the current Status of individual accovrnts. Balances" that are fstill

outstanding after management has -used reason^le cpllectidh efforts afe"

written off through a charge to the valuation allowance Mid a cr.edit to
trade accounts receivable. Changes in the valuation allowance have,.not
been material to ;the financial statements. The accounts receivable in the

accompanying financial statements have been reduced by an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $ 0.

Advertising, cost's - 'The Company expenses all advertising costs as

incurred. Advertising'and marketing expenses for the year ended ,Junta 30,
2021 amounted -to $2,128.

New accounting pronouncement - On August 18, 2016, The Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) .issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-1,4, Notr^or-

prqfit Ehititie's (T^ic 958) - Prssentaition of Financial Statements for'Not-for-

Profi ties. .The^iip^te' adtlresses the complexity and uhderStandability of
■ net asset .classification-, deficiencies in informati.ph sbout liquidity and
availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the ;ty^, of infpraatipn
provided.about expenses .and investment return. Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter ,

Inc; ha's implemented ASU 2dl6-.i4 and has adjusted the presentation in these
financial statements accordingly. Ths ASU has been applied retrospectively to
all .pefipds pfa,sented. The implem^entation had ho impact on previously reported

net assets.

10
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NAS^A SOUP KITCHEN SHELTER. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

3. Investments:

The Orgahizatioh records its investments in accordance with the fair value
gui(^nce established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (^\FASB") .
Under these .standards, fair value is defined as the price the. Organization

w.ould receive from the sale of an asset, or pay to transfer a li^ility,
in a timely transaction with an independent !buyer in a principal market..
The standards established s three-tier hierarchy to distinguish .between
various types of inputs used in determining the value of the

Organization's investments. The inputs are. summarized as outlined below:

Level 1 Inputs - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for
idie identical assets and liabilities. Level 1 assets include fixed

income mutual funds,, equity mutual funds and money market -funds.
Valuations of these instruments do not require a high degree of
judgement as the valuations are based on quoted prices in active
markets that are readily available.

Level 2 inputs - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar as^s.ets and
•liabilities that are not active; and inputs, other than c^pted prices
that are obseryable, .such as models or other valuation
methodologies'. Valuations in; this category are inherently less
reliable than quoted market prices due .to the degree of siibjectivity
involved in determining .appropriate methodologies and the appliceible
underlying assumptions.

Level 3 Inputs - Unob'seryable inputs for the valuation of the asset
or liability. .Level 3 assets include investments for which there is
little/ if any, market activity. These inputs rec^ire significant
management judgement- and estimation. TheSe financial instruments
have inputs that cannot be validated by readily determinable market
data and generally involve considerable judgement .by:management.

The Organization does not have Level 2- or 3 assets .or liabilities;

The fair-value and unrealized depreciation of investments at December .31,
2021 are s.ummarized as follows:

Mutual 6 ETF funds

.Money markets and cash
equivalents

Book

Value

$ 690,382

15.961

$906.-343

Market

■Value

$735,154

15.961

$751.115

Unrealized
Appreciation
{Depreciation)

$.1.55 ,'228

S i 5 5 .'2'28

11
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. INC ■

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

IhvestmQnts cont'd):

The Organization recognized net investment return on their investment

portfolio of $168,221 which included recognized realized gains of .loisses,
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) and is net of charged management
fees of $5,447 (for the year ended June 30, 2021. The Organization's
investments are not insured by the FDIC and are not collateralized and
therefore are sxibject to market risks.

In-kind contributions:

Donated materials and equipment are reflected ais contributions in the
a'ccbmpanying fin^cial statements at fair market value at the date of the

donation. Donated professional services .have been ' .reflected in .the

statements at 'the fair market value for .those services.- These
transactions have been allocated as follows:

Donated food

Donated equipment

and materials

services

Retirement plan:

Kitchen

$1,100,870

18.402

$1.119.272

Client

Services

77.999

$ 77.999

Management

and,

Fundraisina

6.918

$ 6;918

Total

$1,100,870

103.319

Si.204.189

The Organization offers a defined contribution retirement plan under .the
Internal Revenue Code 403 (b) voluntary tax deferred annuity program. Full
time employees are eligible for this benefit after one year of continuous

employment. The Org^ization matches each dollar contributed by employees
up to a .maximum of 6% of regular salary. For ̂ ployees hired !pripr to July
1,2017 once the employee has reached five years of con'tinuous employment,

the Organization will.match up to 12% of the employee's regular aalary at

a ratio of 1 to 1, not to exceed limits allowed 'under tax law. Total

Organizational contributions for the. year ended June 30, 2021 were
$58,085.

Endowment funds:

Interpretation of relevant law - The Board o.f the Organization follows the
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Acts (the Act) and has

interpreted the-Act as .requiring the preservation of the fair value of the.
original gift as of the. gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds

^.sent explicit dpripr stipulation's to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, -the Organization classifies as, permanently restricted ne't

assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to th.e.petbanent endpvmen

(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and
accumulations to the -permanent endowment made in accordance with the

direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time" the
accximulation is added to the fund.

12
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER. INC.

•NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

6. Endowinent fxin^a (cont* d) :

The remaining portion, of a donor'-restricted endowment fund that is not

classified in ^rihahently restricted .net assets is classified as
temporarily fe'stric'ted net assets until those amounts :&z:e :appropriated for

expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard
of prudence prescribed by the Act.

In accordance with' the Act, the Organization <con'siders the following
factors in making a determination to a^aropriate or accumulate donqr-
restricted endo^ent funds:

1. The. duration and preservation of the fund

2. The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted
endowment fund

3. General economic conditi.ons

4. The possible effect of inflation and deflation

5. The ©j^ected total return .from income and the appreciation of
investment's

6. Other resources of the Organization^

7. The investment policies of the Organization

Retu'm objections and risk parameters -r The Organization has adopted,

investment and spending policies for endowment as'sets that attempt, to

provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its
endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment,
assets.

Strategies employed for achieving objectives - To satisfy its long-term

rate>of-return .objectives, the Organization relies on a total return
•"strategy in which anvestment returns -are achieved through both capital
appreciation (realized and unrealized) ̂ d current "yield (interest and
dividends) . The Organization targets a diversified asset allq'ca.tiq'n that
places a greater .emphasis on investments in equity-based ih.'vestmehts to
achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

As of June i30, 2021, the Organization had no endowment funds.

13
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN SHELTER.. INC:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I  JUNE 3d. 2021
I

I

7. Notes receiv^le;

I  Note receivable represents unsecured loans made to the NH Community Loan
1  Fund, a non-profit agency, at an .interest, rate as indicated below.,

i  Interest is paid annually at June 30. The note matures as follows:
t  • •

iNote Value 'Interest Maturitv

$ 4.1,175 5% 11/30/2023
41,175 5% 11/30/2023

28,637 5% 6/30/2029

S110.987

Based on intefeist rates at June 30, 2021 for similar loans by independent

e8tabli_shed .lending institutions, the fair value of these notds

approximate the amount recorded in the financial statements at -that date.

8. Liouiditv and availability of funds:

Nashua'Soup Kit^<w'and Shelter, Inc. (NSK) fih^cial assets avail^le within ohe
year: of the statement of financial position for gien'eral expenditures'are. as

follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $1,885,199 -

.Grants and accounts receivable 166,309

Investments. 906 .-342

$2 . 957 .-850

As part .of .NSK's. lic^idity management, it has a policy to structure its financial
assets to.be available as its general expenditures, lieJsilities, and.other
obligations ;come due . In addition, the Organization invests cash .in excess of
daily .requirements in short-term investments.

9. Commitme'hts and con tinaehcies :

During the. prior 'year, the. .Or'ganizatio'n (NSK) began 'liegqtiatiphs with a,

local .church to potentially lease and renovate a building tiiat would allow

NSk to combined its shelter programs and to expand potential client
services. NSK signed a forty year lease that .expires September -1, 2063
cpntihgent on development costs, city approval and financing. The lease
,called for annual .payments of $1 and 'monthly utility costs..

The organization began feasability and planning studies arid began a
capital campaign 'to help finance these expenses;. The organizati.on was
able to obtain-a grant and contributions specific for these, costs and. as

of' June -30, 2021 and- there were remaining unspent funds of .$532,729 that-

is •shown in donpf Restricted assets.

NSk 2inticipa.tes tHat. the neces'sary studies .and'fiiiah'cing'will be cdmpleted

in the .next fiscal year and if successful t.6 begin renovations, shortly
thefeafter.

,14
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NASHUA SOUP KITCHEN AND SHELTER; INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2021

,9. Commitments and contingencies (cont'd):

Covid-i9 - In March 2020, the Covid-19 corona virus pandemic emerged in
the United States triggering widespread government mandated and voluntary

business closures, which in turn have led to substantial ihterruptionis in

fihahcial mark'ets, e'mplo^ent and the economy' as a whole. ^Though the'
potential financial effects. canno,t be reasonably estimated at. this time,

these, circumstances may have adverse effects on the Organization its
operations and future financial statements. As of the date of this

ireppft, there has hot been a significant negative financial impact to the

Organizatioh'., However, management continues to monitor these events

clo.sely as ;future operating results could be 's.^ignificantly impacted,
because of the diseas.e' s severity and the. duration of the outbreak..

/iO. Evaluation .of 'subsequent events;

The Orgainizatidn has evaluated events through February 9, 2022, ̂ e date
which the financial s'tatements were available to be issued.

15



NASHUA SbPg KITCHEN Airo SHELTOR: INC.

SCHEDULE OF FOTCTiOI^ SUPPORT AND REVENUE

FOR THE^ YEAR'ENDED JUNE' 30. '2021

(tfith conqp^ative totals 'for 2020)

Progr*"'

Client Management Total Total

Sbuo ̂ tchen Services and General Fundraisina 2021 2020

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Support

Public contributions' $  eO'6,429. $752,459 $141,694 $ $1,700,582 $1,171,294

In-)ti'nd- contributions. ,1,119,272 77,999 3,459. 3,459 1,204,189 1,656,197

SMP grant 776,418 - - 776,418 -

State of New, 'Hanpshire

Emergency Shelter Program Grant - 393,387 - ■ — 393,387 168,324

Town Grants - 54,5.00 - - - 54', 500 53, 927.

Social e'visnts. - - 245,i945 245,945 325,635

Capital cas^ai^ - 629,757 - - 629,757 198,225

'other ̂ ah'ts 80,384 29,752 . - - 110,136. 138,957

_ 34:150 - - 34,150 .17 . 395

2.006.685- 2.748.422 145.153 249.404 5.149.064 3.729.954

Revenue"

Interest and dividend income 8,442 11,586 1;820 - 21,848 22,823

Unrealized, appreciation (depreciation)

64 .'998' 89.210 14.013 - 168.221 11.971

73.440 100;796 •15.833 190.069 -34 .794

171.696

Total support and revenue $2.079.525 $2,849,218 $160,986 S249.404 $5,339,133 $3,936.-444
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Nashua Soup Kitchen
& Shelter, Inc.

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter

2022 Board of Directors

Mary Slocum (President), Fidelity Investments

Krishna Mangipudi (Vice President), Shawsheen Valley Technical High School

Jerry Ryan (Treasurer), Retired

Madeleine LaRose (Clerk), Retired

Keith Bagley, Northeastern University

Joseph Bates, Linaro

Linda Bennett, Retired

Thomas Bolton, Captain, Nashua Police Department

Derek Bruinooge, Eaton & Berube

Jane Goodman, Division of Public Health and Community Services, City of Nashua

Shoshanna Kelly, Kelly Creatives

Iraida Muhoz, Case Technician, City of Nashua \A/elfare Department

Janet Polaneczky, Retired

Rick Ruo, Ruo & Haschig Realty

Michael Reinke, Executive Director, NSKS
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Michael Reinke

Employment

2016-present

2015-2016

2012-2015

2011-2012

Executive Director

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter

•  Completed an S8,500,000 campaign (January 2019 - June 2022) for a new
shelter raising over $9,400,000 in three years.

•  Developed and signed a 43 year lease for the Sacred Heart Elementary
School in Nashua to serve as the new location of the emergency housing
services and 11 new units of permanent housing for chronically homeless
individuals.

•  Increased annual giving from $776,000 in FY17 to over $1,300,000 in FY22
•  50% increase in special event revenue to $315,000 (pre-covid)
•  Increased total assets from $$3,553,250 in 2017 to 11,406,974 in 2022,

including $2 million in cash reserves.
•  Started Nashua Meals for kids annually delivering 12,000 frozen meals to

seven Nashua Public Schools and a system of 13 mobile food pantries
distributing 46,000 pounds of produce over the last 12 months.

•  Led a strategic plan/staff reorganization saving $ 120,000 in annual operating
expenses. Prioritized integrating three different databases into one
comprehensive system.

•  Supported the developed an interfaith group of clergy (Nashua Interfaith
Housing Justice) advocating for a greater investment in affordable housing.

Executive Director

Inter-Faith Council for Social Service

•  Developed $300,000 of new federal and state grants and increased existing
local grants totaling $100,000 by 13%.

•  Negotiated a $2,600,000 estate gift.
•  Launched FoodfortheSummer.org doubling the number of meal sites and

children served from 2015 to 2016.

•  Integrate the agency's five separate databases to one combined system.
•  Placed 27 articles in the local news media.

Director of Development
Duke University Sanford School of Public Policy
• Managed the major gift initiative for the Sanford School of Public Policy as

part of the Duke Forward Campaign.
•  $25 million raised over three years.

•  Developed the advancement infrastructure to provide long term support for
the college.

Director of Development - Major Gifls
PeaceHealth St. Joseph Medical Center Foundation
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• Managed the major gift initiative for the Center for Integrated Cancer Care
raising $8,000,000 in 11 months.

•  Introduced a prospect tracking system and with regular reporting.

•  Developed and executed a constituent engagement plans for potential
prospects and for healthcare providers.

2007 - 2011 Director of Development
Woodring College of Education, Western Washington University
•  Prospect giving increased 117% from $81,727 in 2007 to $178,157 in 2010

•  Corporate given increased from one to eleven and from $3,000 to $165,000.

•  Five endowments established with gifts totaling $2,800,000

•  Named scholarships increased 69% from 32 to 54.

•  Established the Friends of Woodring with commitments from 14 outside
members or organizations.

•  Launched a planned giving initiative with initial commitments of $2,325,000.

2004 - 2007 Executive Director

Indiana Coalition on Housing and Homeless Issues

•  Increased membership by from 57 to 134 members and created the first
"legislative awareness day" with 180 people participating annually.

•  Developed the "Indiana's Campaign for Affordable Housing" resulting in
state funding of $7,000,000 annually, the first state funding for affordable
house.

•  Increased corporate giving from three to ten organizations, average gift of
$8,000.

•  Was interviewed for over 80 articles in the newspaper, television or radio,
including three separate editorials in the Indianapolis Star.

•  Planned and coordinated the first statewide conference on hunger and
nutrition.

•  State lead for federal lobbying efforts on homeless and poverty issues.

2001 - 2003 Executive Director

United Way Community Services of Monroe County, Inc!
•  Raised a record $1.78 million in 2002, with over $130,000 in first-time

gifts to the United Way.
•  Recruited more than 30 new corporate campaigns with over 4,000

employees, a 25 percent increase.
•  Led a community-wide needs assessment providing a five-year plan for

community development and philanthropy.

•  Introduced and implemented an outcomes-based allocations model.

1997-2001 Executive Director

Shelter, Inc.

•  Increased annual giving by 180%, including $I 10,000 in individual gifts
and $30,000 in corporate gifts.

•  Secured more than one million dollars in renewable and nonrenewable

funding from federal, state, and local governments, foundation grants and
individual bequests.

•  Planned and developed
o  22 units of transitional housing.
o  Indiana's first federally funded single room occupancy units.
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1994- 1997

Volunteer

Education

MBA

2010

Certification

2000

M. Div.

1996

B.A.

1991

Recognition

Skills and abilities

o The Shalom Community Day Center in partnership with the First
United Methodist Church, daily serving over 200 people.

Executive Director

Holy Trinity Neighborhood Center (Episcopal), New York City, New York
•  Directed a homeless shelter, soup kitchen, after-school program, senior

lunch program, and summer camp.
•  Increased enrollment in youth programs by 120% - developed a computer

learning center.

•  National Coalition for the Homeless - Board of Directors

•  Lamprey Community Health Center - Board of Directors

•  Greater Nashua Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

•  Co-Chair Greater Nashua Continuum of care.

Western Washington University, Bellingham, Washington

School of Philanthropy, Indiana University
Nonprofit management

Union Theological Seminary, New York City, New York
Master's thesis on education, religion, and the civil-rights movement

Wesleyan University, Middletown, Connecticut
Undergraduate Majors in African-American Studies and Government

Distinguished Hoosier. Office of the Governor of Indiana, May 2007

Distance bicycling, hiking, guitar, banjo, and acapella singing
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OLGA CRUZ

EXPERIENCE

12-07 — Present Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter Nashua, NH
Progmn Director
Monitor the daily operations of ru'o emergency shelters, a soup kitchen, 3 transitional apartments,
and the administrative staff. Assure that all shelter and kitchen guidelines are followed in order to
keep the staff and clients safe. Other responsibilides include budgeting, grant reporting, liaison
between the cit)' welfare office and other social ser\'ice agencies to network in providing ser\'ices to
the clients. Administer performance reviews, super\'ision of office staff and managers. Participate in
the shelter directors meetings, ending homelessness meetings, continuum of care meetings, and other
meetings as nccessar)' for the Greater Nashua Area.

2/07 -12/07 Hispanic Advocate
Assisted the Hispanic population in accessing ser\tices with other providers and referred them to the
appropriate agency. Assessed client needs and assisted them by collaborating with other agencies to
obtain funds for clients who were facing eviction, have utilitj' shut off notices, vital records, and
other issues. Clients received a loan from the agency so that they can keep their utilit>' services
active, and also received financial assistance to avoid eviction.

8/99 - 8/05 CAB Health & Recovery Services, Inc. Danvers, MA
Program Manager
Responsibilities included the overall daily operations of two residential treatment programs for
women and children. Assured that all residents were safe and followed program guidelines and
procedures. Delegated and monitored tasks assigned to staff for completion in a timely manner.
Responsible for accounts receivables, budgeting, staff meetings, liaison between the agency and
outside service providers, mediation between residents, administering performance reviews,
super\'ision of all employees, house meetings with residents, attended program managers meetings,
health & safer)' meetings, and other meetings as required. Also helped others with whatever was
necessar)'.

7/97 - 8/99
0£Bce Manager
Super\'ision of the House Manager and the Driver; arranged meetings, transportation schedule for
residents; delegated work; daycare menus; staff meetings; manager meetings; budgeting, incoming
calls, general office procedures, accounts receivables, accounts payables; developed and maintained
budgets for food, housekeeping, medical supplies, office supplies, etc; data entr)' for the research
team, third party billing, bank deposits, and many other tasks as necessar)'.

1992-1996 Dipti V. Shah, R.P.T. Lx)well, MA
OPBcer Manager
Managed three offices for the sole proprietor of a physical therapy office; general office procedures.
Accounts payable, accounts receivables, bank deposits, owner's banking accounts, super\'ised 4
employees plus delegated work to other staff members, traveled between offices for necessar)'
papervk'ork and files to be completed, incoming and outgoing calls. Produced patient reports,
collections, attorney liaison.
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Cont'd Olga Cruz Resume

1983 -1991 Lowell Community' Health Center Lowell, MA
Administrad'^ Assistant

Incoming and outgoing calls, third part)' billing, general office procedures, translated, pediatric/adult
appointments, registered new patients, completed new records, data entr)', mental health
appointments, reports, scheduled meetings, etc.

EDUCATION

University of Phoenix
BS/BM2010

1994-1996 Newbury College - Brookline, MA
Associates of Science in Paralegal
•  Attended 3 semesters of course studies.

1993 G.L.R.V.T.H.S. - LoweU, MA

jJ:gaI Secretary CertiGcate
Intensive 900 hours certificate in a 6 month period. MS Word, Powerpoint, Excel,
Desktop Publishing, WordPerfect, Transcribing, Legal Terminolog)', Technical
Business Writing, and Business Math.

Certificate in Collections

Legal Secretary Certificate
Tj'pc 95 \WM
Organizational Skills
Communication Skills

li.«adership Skills
Certificate in Batterer's Prevention Program

LANGUAGE

Fluent in Spanish
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Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Michael Reinke Executive Director $104,917 2.5% $2,622.93
Olga Cruz Director of Housing Services $70,996 5% $3,549.8
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: Cold Weather Shelter Program RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Strafford County

1.4 Contractor Address

259 County Farm Road
Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)516-7102

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-

24650000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$60,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
f  DocuSlgn>d by;

1  -5 '^^6/18/2022

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
George Maglaras

Chairman bd of commissioers

1.13 . State Agency Signature
DoeuSlflfttd by:

j  '^iS/19/2022
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Karen Hebert

Division Di rector

1.15 Approv^ by tFe^iH. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
OoeuStened by:

By: On: 10/19/2022

1.17 Approval 6y't1te'Govefhor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces,, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take afllrmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
10/18/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 940957C5-6914-4219-BFF5-A7AD2D409964

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Stale
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, in the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior UTitten notice and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omis^jeft-osf the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of

insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Ofijcer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ceilificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("IVorkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreerhent are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITYi In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph.3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding,
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor must have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements must specify how corrective action must be managed. The
Contractor must manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor must
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 A-1.2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide services to NH citizens who are experiencing
homelessness, and who are in need of appropriate shelter during the winter
and cold weather months.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available in Strafford County.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days must mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. Terminology

1.4.1. "Literally Homeless"- Individuals who meets the following criteria:

1.4.1.1. Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private
place not meant for human habitation;

1.4.1.2. Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated
to provide temporary living arrangements (including
congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and
motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal,
state and local government programs); or

1.4.1.3. Is exiting an institution where they resided for 90 days or less
and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant
for human habitation immediately before entering that
institution.

1.4.2. New Hampshire Emergency Rental Assistance Program

1.4.2.1. The NH Emergency Rental Assistance Program (NHERAP)
is a federally-funded rental assistance program through the
Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). It is administered by New Hampshire Housing,
in collaboration with GOFERR and the state's five

Community Action Partnership agencies.

1.4.2.2. NHERAP provides financial assistance for New Hampshire
renters who cannot pay their rent and utilities during the
pandemic. The program works with tenants and landlords,
and is expected to be available through at least 2022.

1.5. The Contractor must provide access to emergency shelter and related services
specifically to provide safety in cold weather, to individuals experiencing
homelessness and who are unable to access year-round emergency shelter
services. The Contractor must:

1.5.1. Ensure that community plans that include a cold weather shell

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 B-2.0 Conlractor Inilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

have shelter designed to meet the basic needs of individuals and
families who have no other housing options and who would otherwise
be without a place to sleep during the winter months.

1.5.2. Ensure each individual's basic needs are met, including, at a minimum,
a safe, protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency
or transitional basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

1.5.3. Provide a low-barrier shelter, with no pre-conditions for entry during cold
weather. Terminations from shelter must only be due to threats to the
safety of the individual or others.

1.5.4. Ensure services are provided in a facility in accordance with Section 3.4.
Operation of Facilities, that includes at a minimum:

1.5.4.1. Building maintenance and repair:

1.5.4.2. Security systems;

1.5.4.3. Heating and possible cooling equipment;

1.5.4.4. Property and business insurance;

1.5.4.5. Utilities and furnishings; and

1.5.4.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

1.6. The Contractor must evaluate and assess appropriate housing needs
throughout the county. If a centralized building is not accessible for the entire
county or logical given the geographic location, the Contractor must provide
alternatives to a centralized shelter.

1.7. The Contractor must not utilize funding for hotel stays until after NHERAP
expires.

1.8. The Contractor must refer clients to the appropriate Regional Access Point for
supportive services.

1.9. The Contractor must engage with all municipalities, related providers, and any
other pertinent individuals in the county. The Contractor must:

1.9.1. Be flexible and reflective of the needs of the particular county, including,
but not limited to:

1.9.1.1. Partial funding of a cold weather shelter.

1.9.1.2. Hotel stays.

1.9.1.3. Other alternatives to provide shelter.

1.9.1.4. Coordination of referrals to related services.

1.9.1.5. Transporlation to shelter solution.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 B-2.0 Contractor Initials Js_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

1.9.2. Engage and include the municipality welfare director of the county
served to leverage funds in order to serve all people experiencing
homelessness who present for services.

1.9.3. Build off of existing resources for such services and not replace what a
community is responsible to provide under RSA 165.

1.9.4. Include a connection with the local Community Action Program to
access NHERAP dollars first, while they are available, for plans for hotel
stays.

1.10. The Contractor must enter client data into the Homeless Management
Information System, as described in the NH HMIS Policy and Procedure
Manual.

.  1.11. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department..

1.12. Reporting

1.12.1. The Contractor must submit monthly Reports, which include, but are
not limited to:

1.12.1.1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Annual
Performance Report (APR) showing number of people
served each month, and cumulative number of people
served.

1.12.2. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.12.2.1. Number of people served each month.

1.12.2.2. Percentage of people who were referred to the Regional
Access Point.

1.12.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Ssqyrity
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English
proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are b\\n6 or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. AH materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 B-2.0 Contractor Initials ̂
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EXHIBIT B

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

,3.3.3.4. Posters. .

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty
upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to;

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of applicatjo^^nd
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eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in- the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Background Checks

5.1. For all employees, interns, volunteers and subcontractors providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor will, after obtaining signed and notarized
authorization from the person or persons for whom information is being sought;

5.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (BEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-
F:49:

5.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) central registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35:

5.1.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no
history of:

5.1.3.1. Felony conviction; or

5.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

5.1.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

5.1.3.2.2. Violence;

5.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

5.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

5.1.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

5.1.3.2.6. Theft; (
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EXHIBIT B

5.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or
alcohol: or

5.1.3.3. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior
that could endanger the well-being of any individual
served under the contract.

5.2. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the Department, it
will not use any employee, intern, volunteer or subcontractor to provide
services under the awarded contract if:

5.2.1. The Individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

5.2.2. The individual's name is on the DCYF central registry;

5.2.3. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

5.2.4. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors as specified above.

6. Confidential Data

6.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as
set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Exhibit K,
DHHS Information Security Requirements.

6.2. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers involved in delivering
services through the resulting contract(s) sign an attestation agreeing to
access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal
and state laws and regulations and the Department's Exhibit K, The Contractor
must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department
request.

6.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct a Privacy
Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system if Personally Identifiable Information
(Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at minimum, the
following:

6.3.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

6.3.2. Who will have access to Pll;

6.3.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

6.3.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

6.3.5. Privacy practices.

6.4. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the,

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 8-2.0 Contractor Initials^
10/18/2022

Slrafford County Page 7 of 9 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 940957C5-6914-4219-BFF5-A7AD2D409964

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT B

processing or storage of Pll.

7. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

7.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract, the Parties agree
to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
Services from the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously
performed by the Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known
as "Recipient"). Contract end of life services must be provided at no additional
cost. Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise
specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with the
Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition
Plan (DTP). The Department must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

7.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and their Affiliates to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of
any such Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

7.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store State Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document, once transition of State Data
is complete.

7.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and its
Affiliates must be provided to the Department and if applicable the Recipient
on a timely manner. Any such Transition Services must be deemed to be
Services for purposes of this Contract.

7.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the resulting Contract, the
Contractor and its affiliates agree Contract Information Security Requirements,
and if applicable, the Department's Business Associates Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.

7.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data and the
destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional stand^s for
retention requirements prior to destruction.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 B-2.0 ConJractor Initials ̂
10/18/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT 8

8. Website and Social Media

8.1. The Contractor must agree that if performance of services on behalf of the
Department involve using social media or a website for marketing to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must work with
the Department's Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or
website designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
of the Department's and NH Department of Information Technology's website
and social media requirements and policies.

8.2. The Contractor must agree protected health information (PHI), personal
information (PI), or other confidential information solicited either by social
media or the website maintained, stored or captured must not be further
disclosed unless expressly provided in the contract. The solicitation or
disclosure of PHI, PI, or other confidential information must be subject to the
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associates
Agreement Exhibit and all applicable state rules and state and federal law.
Unless specifically required by the contract and unless clear notice is provided
to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site visitation
will not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media analytics or
marketing.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 B-2.0 Conlractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cold Weather Shelter Program

EXHIBIT C

Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State Fiscal
Recovery Funds (SFRF), as awarded in May, 2021, by the US
Department of Treasury, Housing Stabilty Service Funds, Assistance
Listing Number 21.023, FAIN# ERA0012 and ERA0435.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has Identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment must be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and must be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, not to exceed
the amount specified in Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation.

4. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or othenwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.bhhsfinance@dhhs.nh.Qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 C-2.0 Contractor Initials _
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EXHIBIT C

5. The Department must make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses must
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
must submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-03 C-2.0 Contractor Initials.
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EXHIBIT C

8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor must be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and must return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09COLDW-03 C-2.0 Contraclor Initials _
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials^
Workplace Requirements 10/18/2022
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

10/18/2022

Date Mag'laras

Vendor Name: St rafford County

OoeoStgn^d by;

Chairman bd of commissioers

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Sen/ices Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: strafford county

— DocuStgned by:

10/18/2022

Date Nal^^^'^efp-Maglaras
Title:

chairman bd of commissioers

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibil F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters 10/18/2022
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposar(contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Susperision, Ineligibillty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Strafford county

DocuSlgn'd by:

10/18/2022

Date -^agl aras
Title: ^. . uj x

chairman bd of commissioers

•OS
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation,

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pL 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

10/18/2022

^  ■agggTO.woDenM.,,..—=
Date Name: George Maglaras

Contractor Name: strafford county

OocuSlgned by:

Chairman bd of commissioers

—DS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civij monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: strafford county

DeeuSlgnad by:

10/18/2022 I .3
'  i!eewseo»»pe'iw —^

Date Name: George Maglaras

chairman bd of commissioers
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivje^
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the BusiJ

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 10/18/2022

Page 2 of 6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 940957C5-6914-4219-BFF5-A7AD2D409964

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obliaations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi|''''°^°*~^

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 10/18/2022

Page 3 of 6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 940957C5-6914-4219-BFF5-A7AD2O409964

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thpsj^
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Strafford County

PfdcSlQtel by: Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert George Maglaras

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Division Director

chairman bd of commissioers

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

10/19/2022 10/18/2022

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
the av^^rd or award amendment is made.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certltication:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply v^th all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: strafford county

—DocuSlgntd by:

10/18/2022

Title: chairman bd of commissioers

Exhibit J - CertiTication Regarding the Federai Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compiiance 10/18/2022
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FORM A

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  . YH2ABMMMH7M4
1. The DEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:,._

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUrt)HHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

»

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or.implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

-DS
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices." End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all ...details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Lastupdate 10/09/18 ExhibilK ContraclorInitials
DHHS information
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any

derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
■applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials.
DHHS Information
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COMMISSIONERS

GEORGE MAGLARAS, Chairman

ROBERT J. WATSON, Vice Chairman
DEANNA S. ROLLO, Clerk

TREASURER

PAMELA]. ARNOLD

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

RAYMOND F. BOWER

STRAFFORD COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS
WILLIAM A. GRIMES

Justice & Administration Building
259 County Farm Road, Suite 204
Dover, New Hampshire 03820

Telephone: (603)742-1458
Fax: (603) 743-4407

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Robert J. Watson, Vice-Cliairman of StrafTord County, New Hampshire do hereby certify that; (1) at the
public meeting held on October 13, 2022, the County Commissioners voted to (1) Accept funds and enter
into a agreement with the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, and (2)
further authorize the Chairman, Board of Commissioners to execute any documents which may be
necessary to effectuate this contract and any amendments thereto; (3) I further certify that this
authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever, and remains in full
force and effect as of the date hereof; and (4) the following person now occupies the office indicated
under item (2) above:

George Maelaras. Chairman. Strafford County Commissioners

Name and Title of Officer Authorized to Sign

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk of Strafford County, New
Hampshire this 13th day of October 2022.

Robert]. Watson, Vice Chairman

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF STRAFFORD

On this 13"' day of October, 2022, before me Janet Hilber, the undersigned officer, personally appeared
Robert J. Watson, who acknowledged their self to be the Vice-Chairman for the Strafford County Board
of Commissioners, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein
contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my and official seal.

Notary Public / /
Commission Expiration Date; //
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Primex"
NH Public Risk Moncgement Eiclwngc CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex^) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5-6.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Tnjst Agreement and bylaws, Primex^ is authorized to provide pooied n'sk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex^ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex^ may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex^, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shaii be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) arkd Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Berkefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The t>elow named entity is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage prosrided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Member: Member Number: Company Affording Coverage:

Strafford County 605 NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
259 County Farm Road Bow Brook Place

Dover, NH 03820 46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

Type of Coverage
Effective Date

(mm/dd/YYVvl

Expiration Date
(mm/dd/vYW)

Limits' NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Not:

General Liability (Occurrence Form)
ProfesslonaLLIability (describe)

Claims Occurrence
Made '□

1/1/2022 1/1/2023 Each Occurrence

General Aggregate
Fire Damage (Any one
fi re)
Med Exp (Any one person)

$ 5,000,000
$ 5,000,000

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll:

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each Accideni)

Aggregate

Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 1/1/2022 1/1/2023 Statutory S2,000,000

Each Accident 52,000,000

Disease - Eacn EmployM

Disease - Policy umii

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; Setd

Date: 10/11 /2022 mourcelKSinhDrimex.orQState of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax
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Subject: Cold Weather Shelter Program RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-385.7

1.3 Contractor Name

Way Station

1.4 Contractor Address

15 Grove Street

North Conway, NH 03860

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)452-7113

1.6 Account Number

05-095-094-940010-

24650000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$140,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
DocuSlgned by:

Date:10/13/202

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Gail Doktor

"  vice President, Bd of bir, way Station

1.13 State^gency ̂gnaYiire
x'^^DocuSlgrMd by:

Date:10/14/202
1  fTe4<^

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Karen Hebert

?  . . . .
Division Director

1.15 AppfoW^SPfft^^NtH. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
DocuSigned by:

I  0"^ 10/18/2022
1.17 ApprovaTKy^'flietjoverribr and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1

("State")i engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement

shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall, not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder {"Event

of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documerits, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO TH E STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omisstonoftf the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate{s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiflcate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modifled in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor must have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements must specify how corrective action must be managed. The
Contractor must manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor must
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

4*
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Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide services to NH citizens who are experiencing
homelessness, and who are in need of appropriate shelter during the winter
and cold weather months.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available in Carroll County.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days must mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. Terminology

1.4.1. "Literally Homeless"- Individuals who meets the following criteria:

1.4.1.1. Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private
place not meant for human habitation;

1.4.1.2. Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated
to provide temporary living arrangements (including
congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and
motels paid for by charitable organizations or by federal,
state and local government programs); or

1.4.1.3. Is exiting an institution where they resided for 90 days or less
and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant
for human habitation immediately before entering that
institution.

1.4.2. New Hampshire Emergency Rental Assistance Program

1.4.2.1. The NH Emergency Rental Assistance Program (NHERAP)
is a federally-funded rental assistance program through the
Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). It is administered by New Hampshire Housing,
in collaboration with GOFERR and the state's five

Community Action Partnership agencies.

1.4.2.2. NHERAP provides financial assistance for New Hampshire
renters who cannot pay their rent and utilities during the
pandemic. The program works with tenants and landlords,
and is expected to be available through at least 2022.

1.5. The Contractor must provide access to emergency shelter and related services
specifically to provide safety in cold weather, to individuals experiencing
homelessness and who are unable to access year-round emergency shelter
services. The Contractor must:

1.5.1. Ensure that community plans that include a cold weather shel^ljustshel^mi

iilialsRFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLOW-04 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials.
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have shelter designed to meet the basic needs of individuals and
families who have no other housing options and who would otherwise
be without a place to sleep during the winter months.

1.5.2. Ensure each individual's basic needs are met. including, at a minimum,
a safe, protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency
or transitional basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

1.5.3. Provide a low-barrier shelter, with no pre-conditions for entry during cold
weather. Terminations from shelter must only be due to threats to the
safety of the individual or others.

1.5.4. Ensure services are provided in a facility in accordance with Section 3.4.
Operation of Facilities, that includes at a minimum:

1.5.4.1. Building maintenance and repair;

1.5.4.2. Security systems;

1.5.4.3. Healing and possible cooling equipment;

1.5.4.4. Property and business insurance;

1.5.4.5. Utilities and furnishings; and

1.5.4.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

1.6. The Contractor must evaluate and assess appropriate housing needs
throughout the county. If a centralized building is not accessible for the entire
county or logical given the geographic location, the Contractor must provide
alternatives to a centralized shelter.

1.7. The Contractor must not utilize funding for hotel stays until after NHERAP
expires.

1.8. The Contractor must refer clients to the appropriate Regional Access Point for
supportive services.

1.9. The Contractor must engage with all municipalities, related providers, and any
other pertinent individuals in the county. The Contractor must:

1.9.1. Be flexible and reflective of the needs of the particular county, including,
but not limited to:

1.9.1.1. Partial funding of a cold weather shelter.

1.9.1.2. Hotel stays.

1.9.1.3. Other alternatives to provide shelter.

1.9.1.4. Coordination of referrals to related services.

1.9.1.5. Transportation to shelter solution.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials
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1.9.2. Engage and include the municipality welfare director of the county
served to leverage funds in order to serve all people experiencing
homelessness who present for services.

1.9.3. Build-off of existing resources for such services and not replace what a
community is responsible to provide under RSA 165.

1.9.4. Include a connection with the local Community Action Program to
access NHERAP dollars first, while they are available, for plans for hotel
stays.

1.10. The Contractor must enter client data into the Homeless Management
Information System, as described in the NH HMIS Policy and Procedure
Manual.

1.11. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department..

1.12. Reporting

1.12.1. The Contractor must submit monthly Reports, which include, but are
not limited to:

1.12.1.1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Annual
Performance Report (APR) showing number of people
served each month, and cumulative number of people
served.

1.12.2. The Contractor must provide key data in a format and at a frequency
specified by the Department for the following performance measures:

1.12.2.1. Number of people served each month.

1.12.2.2. Percentage of people who were referred to the Regional
Access Point.

1.12.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information §£pyrity

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 B-2,0 Contractor Initials
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Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful
access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English
proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories. /—

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 B-2.0 Contractor Initials v
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3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty
upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of applicati^i^nd
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eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records, maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Background Checks

5.1. For all employees, interns, volunteers and subcontractors providing services
under this Agreement, the Contractor will, after obtaining signed and notarized
authorization from the person or persons for whom information is being sought:

5.1.1. Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (SEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161 -
F:49:

5.1.2. Submit the person's name for review against the Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) central registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35;

5.1.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no
history of:

5.1.3.1. Felony conviction; or

5.1.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

5.1.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

5.1.3.2.2. Violence;

5.1.3.2.3. Exploitation;

5.1.3.2.4. Child pornography;

5.1.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

5.1.3.2.6. Theft;
aj)
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5.1.3.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or
alcohol: or

5.1.3.3. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior
that could endanger the well-being of any individual
served under the contract.

5.2. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the Department, it
will not use any employee, intern, volunteer or subcontractor to provide
services under the awarded contract if:

5.2.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

5.2.2. The individual's name is on the DCYF central registry;

5.2.3. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

5.2.4. The individual has.a record of any misdemeanors as specified above.

6. Confidential Data

6.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as
set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Exhibit K,
DHHS Information Security Requirements.

6.2. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers involved in delivering
services through the resulting contract(s) sign an attestation agreeing to
access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal

and state laws and regulations and the Department's Exhibit K. The Contractor
must ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon Department
request.

6.3. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Department to conduct a Privacy
Impact Assessment (PIA) of its system if Personally Identifiable Information
(Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at minimum, the
following:

6.3.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

6.3.2. Who will have access to Pll;

6.3.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

6.3.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

6.3.5. Privacy practices.

6.4. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the cpjttec?flon,
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processing or storage of Pll.

7. Contract End-of-Llfe Transition Services

7.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Contract, the Parties agree
to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth secure transition of the
Services from the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the Services previously
performed by the Contractor for this section the new Contractor must be known
as "Recipient"). Contract end of life services must be provided at no additional
cost. Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise
specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with the
Department and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data Transition
Plan (DTP). The Department must provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

7.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient, in
connection with the transition from the performance of Services by the
Contractor and their Affiliates to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records (electronic and hard
copy), transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the transition of
any such Service from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems
of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any third-party
consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition Services.

7.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools)
was purchased or created to manage, track, and/or store State Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document, once transition of State Data
is complete.

7.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and its
Affiliates must be provided to the Department and if applicable the Recipient
on a timely manner. Any such Transition Services must be deemed to be
Services for purposes of this Contract.

7.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the resulting Contract, the
Contractor and its affiliates agree Contract Information Security Requirements,
and if applicable, the Department's Business Associates Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by
the Department.

7.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data and the
destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and
Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards^ for
retention requirements prior to destruction.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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8. Website and Social Media

8.1. The Contractor must agree that if performance of services on behalf of the
Department Involve using social media or a website for marketing to solicit
information of individuals, or Confidential data, the Contractor must work with
the Department's Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or
website designed, created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
of the Department's and NH Department of Information Technology's website
and social media requirements and policies.

8.2. The Contractor must agree protected health information (PHI), personal
information (PI), or other confidential information solicited either by social
media or the website maintained, stored or captured must not be further
disclosed unless expressly provided in the contract. The solicitation or
disclosure of PHI, PI, or other confidential information must be subject to the
Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the Business Associates
Agreement Exhibit and all applicable state rules and state and federal law.
Unless specifically required by the contract and unless clear notice is provided
to users of the website or social media, the Contractor agrees that site visitation
will not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media analytics or
marketing.

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 B-2.0 Contractor Initials,
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State Fiscal
Recovery Funds (SFRF), as awarded in May, 2021, by the US
Department of Treasury, Housing Stabilty Service Funds, Assistance
Listing Number 21.023, FAIN# ERA0012 and ERA0435.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has Identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subreclpient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment must be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and must be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, not to exceed
the amount specified in Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation.

4. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.bhhsfinance(g)dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 C-2.0 Contractor Initials
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5. The Department must make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for.authorized expenses must
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
must submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

^  DS

RFA-2023-DEHS-09-COLDW-04 C-2.0 Contractor IniUals ̂
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EXHIBIT C

8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor must be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and must return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFA-2023.DEHS-09-COLDW-04 C-2.0 Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaUgency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials ̂
Workplace Requirements 10/13/2022
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3. 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: way station - State vendor id 339623

— C>ocuSlgn«d by:

10/13/2022

NaS^^'mr^oktor
Title: vice President, Bd of Dir, way Station

Exhibit D - Certiftcation regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: way station - State vendor ID 339623

— DocuSigned by:

10/13/2022

Dili
Title:

vice President, Bd of Dir, way station

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

4'
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its Knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

10/13/2022

Contractor Name: way Station - state vendor id 339623

DocuSlgnsd by:

vice President, Bd of Dir, way Station
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federai grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a materiai representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name: way station - State vendor id 339623

C^DocuSlgned by:
>."3flMgWH3V43T..., ̂

Date Name: Gaircoktor
Title. President, Bd of oir, way station
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: way station - state vendor id 339623

C—DocuSigncd by:
Diti

Title: vice President, Bd of Dir, way Station
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Acareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^
Health Insurance Portability Act
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifiis&

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the

- protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving P^l
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terrns of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thescps
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resofved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

■«>0O6OC0<[>4M4fe

Signature of Authorized Representative
Karen Hebert

Name of Authorized Representative
oivi sion Di rector

Title of Authorized Representative

10/14/2022

Date

way station - State vendor ID 339623

Contractor

I CoL
'  I 3iAawwe.3za43r.. . . _ ,
Signature of Authorized Representative

Gail Doktor

Name of Authorized Representative

vice President, Bd of Dir, way Station
Title of Authorized Representative

10/13/2022

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tiersub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Avirard title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DEI#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: way station - state vendor id 339623

— DocuSlgnad by:

10/13/2022

r

Title: vice President, Bd of Dir, way Station

O)
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials^ ^ -
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is: ~ 117679278

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the follov/ing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your •

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:.

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:.

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:.

CU/OHHS/110713
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103,

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate'disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

-DS
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

Oj
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

— DS
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

-08
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

0. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

OS

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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Security Requirements 10/13/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

4"
V5. Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials^

DHHS Information
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAY STATION is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 19, 2020. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretarj' of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofilce is

concerned.

Business ID: 845297

Certificate Number: 0005794449

0&

iSf.%

Sb

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this2lst dav of June A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar>' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

'• o< >h. Corporation/LLC; canno. be oonaac, signatory)

1  I am a duly elected President. Board of Directors of the Way Station.(Corporation/LLC Name)

2 The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a [virtual] meeting of the Board o'
called and held on October 12, 2022, at which a.quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Gail Doktnr Vice President (rnay jist more than one person)
(Name and Title of Corrtract Signatory)

is duty authorized on behalf of Wav Station to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Cor{»ration/;,LLCj

of Now Hampshire and any of its agencies, or departments and further.is authorized tp
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any.amendments, revisions, or modificatio
may In his/her judgnnent be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote tias not been arnended .or^ repealed and remains in full force and ,1^
date of the contract/contract amendment, to which''.this''certificate is attached. This authonty " otat'o nf
thirty (30) days from the date of this Oectificate of, Agthprity.:! furtheTce^ify that it Is understood that thp State m
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate:-as evidence that the pefson(s) listed above currently pccupy
position(s) indicated and that they have fullvauthdrrty to bind the corporation'. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Indlvidual.to bind the (^rporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated; 10/12/22
Signature of Elected ©fficer
Name; Nathan Hall

Title: President, Way Station

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORtf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMrt)D/YYYY)

10/12/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsements).

PRODUCER

RogersGray, A Baldwin Risk Partner
3278 White Mountain Highway
North Conway NH 03860

License#; PC-514062

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE FAX
No F*H: (A/C.No):

E4VIAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJC#

INSURER A Scottsdale Insurance Companv 41297

INSURED JANEHEWl

Way Station
PO Box 1888

North Conway NH 03860

INSURER B AmTrust North /^erica

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1319006768 REVISION NUMBER: .

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
ITf^ TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

[N5R VWR POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

/MM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E 1 X 1 OCCUR
CPS7525765 2/20/2022 2/20/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $100,000

MEO EXP (Any one person) S 5.000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $2,000,000

POLICY 1 1 ^LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000

s

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
TOS
N-OWNED

TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

sc BODILY INJURY (Per acddent) s

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per flcckJentl

s

$

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE s

DEO RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 j
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes. des^be under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

WWC3586237 5/1/2022 5/1/2023 Y  PER OTH-
^  STATUTE FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L- DISEASE - POLICY LIMrr

$ 1,000,000

$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schsdula. may baatuched If more space Is required)

State of New Hampshire
Dept. of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St.
Concord NH 03301-3857

'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AMTHOBITFO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

© 1988>2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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About Way Station

Mission

The Way Station provides safe, welcoming, non-judgmental space and supportive
services for the homeless & housing insecure of Mt Washington Valley.

Vision

Way Station's vision is to support the homeless and housing-insecure population by
sustaining an adaptive organization to advocate for each client's future situation while
providing mitigation of present struggles leading to greater quality of life.
Advocate:

•  Form relationships with homeless and housing-insecure populations and in
particular, the clients we serve

•  Identify and document homelessness and housing insecurity in the MWV area
• Connect clients to additional agencies and nonprofits that also provide care for

overlapping populations

• Assist client to develop a route to stability and empowerment
Barrier mitigation:

•  Identify process barriers
• Mitigate barriers to processes and connections that support sustainable quality

of life

Quality of life:

• Meet essential needs of client

•  Provide services that reduce risk of harm to clients

•  Identify client goals and support steps to achieve sustainable client objectives
•  Identify and fill the resource gap for clients we serve
• Assist clients to strive for independent, safe, and sustainable living situations

Responsive:

• Maintain flexible structure to meet individual needs

Values

Our organization seeks to be:
• Compassionate and non-judgmental: recognition of dignity and value of each

human's life

•  Responsive and adaptive: innovative and flexible approach to meeting client
needs

•  Empowering people to find their own path: supporting people's choices and
independence

•  Transparency and accountability: communication with clients, personnel,
supporters and service providers

•  Trust-building: developing connections of integrity with clients and service
providers

• Teamwork: Use a collaborative and communicative approach
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Damian Santana

Education

March 2021 Southern New Hampshire University
B.S. Health Sciences and Public Health Management
President's List

August 2011 North Shore Community College
Associates of Science in Occupational Therapy
Graduated with Honors

Experience

June 2021-present
Director of SUD Program Expansion for Carroll County and Assistant Director Home for All Granite United Way, NH

July 2020-June 2021
Case Investigation Lead, Public Health Covid-19 Operations Center in Concord. NH

May 2017-February 2020
Director of Rehabilitation, HealthPro-Heritage at Port Health Care in Newburyport, MA.

April, 2011-May. 2017
Assistant Director of Rehabilitation Select Rehab at Rockingham County Rehabilitation and Nursing Center in
Brentwood, NH

History of Roles and Responsibilities

Engage area partners in programming to improve patient services

Represent GUW at County and State wide meetings

, Facilitate work to fund recovery, law enforcement and healthcare partners

Provided oversight of medical programs throughout NH and MA.

Supervised and training of National Guard. DHHS staff and private contractors in Emergency Response Initiatives
with NH DHHS.

Develop and maintain working relationships with community providers and programs to meet the needs of
marginalized populations and achieve health equity.

Identify areas of opportunity for prograniming efficiency. Develop and maintain Continuous Quality Improvement
Initiatives in order to improve client services.

Special Projects

Special Interest Speaker Series- Identify and invite presenters from across the country to engage with Allied Health
Services in NH to improve clinical skills and services since 2020.

Special Certifications and Skills

Proficient in Microsoft Suite and online virtual training platforms including Zoom and Microsoft Teams

Licensed Occupational Therapy Assistant in NH 2011 -present

New Hampshire Occupational Therapy Association Board Member 2020
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KIMBERLEE

WHITE FEATHER -

ALTOMARE

EDUCATION

NASHUA SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Left School in 1984

Nashua Adult Learning Center
GED/HiSET Program
Graduated in 1985

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

Graduated in 1990

Vocational Rehabilitation is a joint State/Federal program that seeks to
empower people to make informed choices, build viable careers, and
live more independently in the community.

Studied

Supervisory training program, house painting, construction skills set,
using power tools, construction project management and construction
Safety training. Also DOS computer system programming and
dBASE, one of the first database management systems for
microcomputer and the most successful in its day.

Certifications:

Certified Recovery Support Worker
license #0278 Exp. 6/20/24

Shelter Fundamentals and Disaster Cycle Services trained
1/24/2019

One Call Driver and Attendant Trained 6/6/2022

HARBOR HOMES & AMERICORPS

Recovery Corps February 2019 to March 2020

AmeriCorps members, serving as Recovery Navigators and
Opioid Response Project Coordinators provide mentoring, peer
support and resource navigation to help people build their
recovery capitol. The Recovery Navigator is not a sponsor or
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counselor, but a trained peer who understands the journey of
recovery.

Opioid Response Project Coordinators serve one year making a
difference at organizations who serve individuals who are in
recovery from substance use disorders. As an Opioid Response
Project Coordinator, you help your host organizations build
capacity in order to quickly and thoughtfully address the opioid
epidemic. At the end of the one year you are fully trained and
receive your certification as a Certified Recovery Support
Worker. (CRSW) Which includes 1700 hours of volunteer time,
500 hours of supervised training and experience. And several
hours of clinical supervision. This is a higher education
experience.

These trainings include:
*CCAR Recovery Coach Academy
*HIV/HEP-C for Recovery Support Staff
*HIV and Other Transferable Diseases for Recovery Coaches
♦Ethical Consideration for Peer Support Specialists
♦NAM! Connect Suicide Prevention
♦Motivational Interviewing
♦Ethical Issues for Recovery Support Workers
♦HIPAA

1 also had training in and not all though AmeriCorps:
♦Serve Safe Basic Food Safety and the Risks Associated with
Serving Food to the Public
♦Emergency Response in the ED
♦Emergency Recovery Response in the ED
♦Basic First Aid Training
♦Standard First Aid
♦Basic Life Support
♦Emergency AED
♦Healthcare CPR/AED (Adult/Child/Infant)
♦Blood Borne Pathogens and HIV
♦Emergency Response through AmeriCorps and the Red Cross
♦The Evolution of Marijuana Policies and the Implications for
Prevention
♦Coming Into the Light: Breaking the Stigma of Substance Use
Disorders
♦The Power of Groups: Group Work Using Motivational
Interviewing
♦Mental Health for Recovery Coaches
♦Motivational Interviewing: Rapid Engagement to Effective
Collaborative Change
♦Facilitator Training
♦Shelter Fundamentals and Disaster Cycle Services
♦Ethics, Values and Boundaries in Peer Recovery Support Work
Training
♦Live Addressing Low Self Esteem and Efficacy
♦Ethical Considerations for Recovery Coaches
♦Dialectical Behavior Therapy: Adolescent Adaptation Part I
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♦Dialectical Behavior Therapy: Adolescent Adaptation Part II
♦Strategies for Identifying and Avoiding Burnout Among Staff
Who Delivers Peer Recovery Support Services
♦Connect Suicide Prevention Training - Social Services
♦Intersection of Prevention and Recovery
♦Recovery Community Asset Mapping
♦Guiding Principles of Recovery
♦Words Matter: Language and stigma reduction
♦Behavioral Health and Substance Misuse among NH's Rural
Baby boomers and Older Adults part 1 - Alcohol and Substance
Use
♦The Impact of Compassion Fatigue in Peer Support Work
♦NAMI NH CONNECT Online Suicide Prevention Training for
Mental Health Care Providers
♦American Red Cross Disaster Training
♦DBHRT - New Hampshire Disaster Behavioral Health
Response Teams Training
♦Overview of the National 988 Initiative and Implications for
Crisis Call Centers
♦Alcohol Use Disorder in the Primary Care Setting: Best
Practices for Rural Communities
♦UVM Center on Rural Addiction Community Rounds
Workshop Series
♦SAMHSA SSI/SSDI Outreach, Access, and Recovery (SOARs
Training)

WORK EXPERIENCE

THE WAY STATION
Volunteer and Outreach Coordinator Specialist
Every Thursday 10am to 6pm - from August 2019 - Present

The Way Station was bom in 2019, in response to growing
concems about the lack of local resources for people
experiencing housing instability in the Conway area. There's no
local public housing authority. The closest overnight shelters are
about an hour away in Lancaster, Littleton or Laconia. There's a
patchwork of nonprofits and other support services trying to
help in different ways, but it seemed like a lot of people were
still falling through the cracks. The Way Station provides a
valuable day resource center for homeless people, those with
challenges of affordable housing, cooking fuel, washing
facilities, internet access and basic personal care resources.
Beginning as a day center, it is the first step in supporting those
who are in need. The Way station is open On Monday by
appointment from 10am to 2pm and on Thursdays from 10am to
6pm, By appointment from 10am to 1pm and Walk in's from
4pm to 6pm. 603-452-7113

DBHRT - New Hampshire Disaster Behavioral
^  Health Response Teams

July 2020 - Present



DocuSign Envelope ID: 92D50ACB-7DDD-4D64-97D4-81661D449582

/

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
(DHHS) has developed an organized team of behavioral health
providers to respond to the mental health needs of New
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism,
man-made or natural disasters). Five regional disaster behavioral
health response teams (DBHRT) can be deployed immediately
anywhere in the state. The team responds to disasters or critical
incidents when local behavioral health resources have been

depleted or are overwhelmed. The goal of the disaster behavioral
health response team is to provide an organized response to
individual victims, family members, survivors, or the
community affected by critical incidents or disasters.

Tri County Community Action Homeless Intervention and
Prevention Case Manager
Case Management, Homeless Outreach and Program
Development
October 11, 2021 — March 2022

Case Manager provides screening, assessment, advocacy and
ongoing case management for homeless families, to help them
get placed in Shelters or transitional housing, as well as single
adults and those who are in recovery as well as those who are
transitioning back to the community from jail or from a 28 day
recovery program. Then into apartments, or sober living.

0 The Case Manager Offers vision, creativity, and enthusiasm to
employees and community members to generate the positive
thinking of and best practices for homeless people;
b Maintains meaningful involvement with consumers,
advocates, and community partners;
0 Participates in creating and maintaining a workplace that
values diversity and is free of racism, sexism,
heterosexism, and other discriminatory practices;
0 Maintain and improve on a collaborative and cohesive team of
professionals committed to the mission delivery; and, '
0 Continue to foster and improve an organizational culture that
builds on our core value as well as personal engagement and
partnership, while assisting in meeting their basic needs.

An outreach worker is responsible for supporting community
events and relief efforts to assist citizens with their needs,

providing them resources, and facilitating lifestyle programs.544

WHITE HORSE RECOVERY CENTER AND THE SHED

Transportation Coordinator/Driver-Recovery Coach-
Office Assistant -Family Night Coordinator - Memorial
Hospital Emergency Response Team member - CRSW in
training
January 28, 2018 - March 18,2020

Transport coordinator responsibilities include planning the most
efficient means to get clients to and from their appointments on time,
as well as providing tracking information to superiors.
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Other responsibilities for this organization included assisting in the
internal review and revision of accreditation standards for The Shed,
is a recovery service facility. My other duties included, revising core
materials, gathering articles and resources, supporting subcommittee
work and being a member of the Ethics Committee. Part of the
position was recovery coaching, building and maintaining the
Advisory Committee and the publishing of materials such as signs,
posters, hand out and Teaching tools that helped staff members and
clients better understand a task or situation. Managing, implementing,
and building recovery related programs. And working with individuals
that seek recovery in a non-threatening setting to help find recovery
services, housing, and jobs.

Was also one of several founding members of the Memorial Hospital
Recovery Emergency Response Team for Carroll County Peer
Recovery Support Services. (CCPRSS) I went on many calls to the
hospital Emergency Room/Emergency Department.

And have Co-Coordinated and implemented a Ride for Recovery
motorcycle fundraiser for White Horse. In August 2019.

1 am a part of the recovery support network which is someone who
works as part of a team, who provides mental health Services in focus
directly on the needs and services of users, working across boundaries
of care, organizations and roles. Support and give time to the service
user to promote their recovery. Helped to get people into recovery
venues.

Played a key part in the coordination of care. Undertaken a range of
tasks that promote Independent Living, thai provide friendship,
provide regular and practical support, provide support with daily
living, facilitate people living ordinary lives, help the user to gain
access to resources, provide information on better health promotion,
helped to identify early signs of relapse, and helped substance abuse
clients to involve themselves and participate with their treatment by
going to regular meetings. Also have done early intervention and crisis
resolution at the hospital. Have Assisted clients in receiving services
by telephone and in person. Getting clients involved in beneficial
activities. Doing basic assessing of clients, meeting them where they
are and gathering relevant information. Offering information and
supporting clients and their families. Gontacting and making referrals
to other agencies and services. Maintaining accurate records and
preparing reports. Participating in training, supervision, and meetings.
Watching for signs of child abuse. And provide crisis intervention
whenever necessary.
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DAN LAVIGNE- Resume

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

pg 1 of 3

BLUE HERON Neurofeedback and

Counseling: April 2021-Current
•  Clinical Director/Clinical

Supervisor - Stacie Leclerc
• Clinical Supervisor - Elaine Davis

April 2021-September 2021
Outpatient Counselor
Duties:

Screening and assessing to determine
level of care

Assist individuals in discovering
treatment goals
Development and implementation of
treatment plans
Support and facilitate client
community support structure •
All phases of client documentation
Individual substance use disorder

counseling
Supervised individual mental l^ealth
counseling
Client advocacy
Interagency collaboration

WAY STATION: April 2021-Current
•  Direct Supervisor - Nathan Hall

Homeless and Housing Insecure
Outreach Coordinator

Duties:

Screening clients to determine level of
need

Development of weekly needs
documentation

Assist individuals in exploring
community resources
Screening client calls to determine
severity of need
Community resource navigation
Support and facilitate client
community support structure
Agency and client documentation
Volunteer scheduling and
recruitment

Interagency collaboration
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DAN LAVIGNE- Resume
pg 2 of 3

WHITE HORSE ADDICTION CENTER:

February 2017-2021

• Clinical Supervisor - Joni O'Brien
Outpatient Counselor / Intensive
Outpatient Program Facilitator /
CRSW Supervisor
Duties:

Screening and assessing to determine .
level of care

Development and implementation of
recovery-oriented groups and
psychoeducational classes
Assist individuals in discovering
treatment goals
Development and implementation of
treatment plans
Croup counseling facilitation
Support and facilitate client
community support structure
All phases of client documentation
Individual substance use disorder

counseling
Client advocacy
Interagency collaboration
Interviewing potential employees
Provide CRSW clinical supervision

TRI-COUNTY CAP Friendship House
November 2012-Aprii 2017

•  Clinical Supervisor - Stacy Leclerc
Outpatient Counselor June 2016 - 2017
Transitional Living Coordinator July
2015-June 2016

Transitional Living Work Therapy
Supervisor July 2015- June 2016
General Building Maintenance
Coordinator July 2015-June 20016
Residential Substance Abuse Counselor

February2015 - June 2016
Program Coordinator January 2014 -
February 2015
Program Advisor November 2012 -
January 2014

TRI-COUNTY CAP (cont'd)

Duties:

Utilize screening tools to determine
client placement
Development and implementation of
recovery-oriented groups and
educational classes

Assist clients with treatment goals
Development and implementation of
treatment plans
Group counseling facilitation
Support and facilitate client
community support structure
All phases of client documentation
Individual substance abuse

counseling
Develop workplace structure
Instruct clients in appropriate
workplace behaviors
Client case management
Client advocacy between
organizations
Interagency collaboration
Coordinate Program staff schedules
Facilitate collaboration between

clinical and administrative teams

Staff advocacy
Facilitate staff meetings
Create and facilitate staff training
Interviewing potential employees
Reviewing medical and medication
documentation

Creating and implementing new
policies and procedures
Identifying troubled areas and
proposing potential corrections
Deliver individual substance use

disorder counseling services
Conduct substance use disorder

evaluations
Coordinate client services within 3

counties and 4 offices
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DAN LAVIGNE - Resume

pg 3 of 3

ACADEMIC

Graduated Summa Cum Laude from NHTI-Concord with an Associate of Science In
Addiction Counseling
Graduated Cum Laude from Springfield College with a Bachelor of Science in Human
Services

Graduated Springfield College with a Master of Science in Clinical Mental Health
Counseling
PESI Certified ADHD Professional (ADHD-CCSP)

SPECIAL SKILLS and QUALIFICATIONS

Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) in the State of New Hampshire
Master level Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor candidate
Clinical Mental Health Counselor candidate

ADHD concentration

Intentional peer-support training
Wellness Recovery Action Plan training

/■
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

\

Name Job Title Salary % Paid Amount Paid

&om this from this

Contract Contract

Damian Sancana, Grand Administrator - n/a - 100% = $3,718.08

C3PH / Granite United contract 38.73 X 12

Way hours per
month X 8

months

(November

2022 - June

2023)

Kim White Feather- Client Coordinator n/a - 100% = $11,040.00

Altomare contract $32/hr X 20

weeks of full

service @15
j

hrs/wk

(December

2022-April

2023) at full
service + 20

hrs/month of

prep in
November

2022 + 20

hrs/mqnth of
followup
(May - June
2023)

Dan Lavigne Client Care Coordinator, $41,184.00 15% = $6,400.00

Way Station per 2021 $32/hrx 10

budget hrs/wk for

period of
client

services = 20

wks

(December

2022 - April
2023)

z'


